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Nl Introduction 

Nl.l.l This Appendix collates and records the evidence upon which I rely in Section 
14 with respect to the conditions reported in the stairs and lobbies by fire 
fighter and resident witnesses. 

N1.1.2 This is based on: 

a) Fire fighter witness statements (the majority of the evidence at this time) 

b) Transcripts of fire fighter oral evidence (25 1h June 2018- 2nd October 
2018) 

c) Resident witness statements (limited at this time) 

N1.1.3 I will update this evidence when the Residents have completed their oral 
evidence to the Inquiry, as it is of considerable importance in understanding 
the condition of the lobby outside their own flat, and on their own journey 
down the stairs. 

N1.1.4 I have been assisted in this work by my colleague Dr Graeme Flint. 

Nl.l.S This evidence is presented in a series of tables set in chronological order of 
the events observed by witnesses on the 14th June 2017. 

N1.1.6 The fire fighter witness statements and transcripts of oral evidence do not 
provide specific times for each observed event described. I have therefore had 
to attribute a time to events observed by fire fighters above the bridgehead 
inside Grenfell Tower. I have used evidence from the fire fighter breathing 
apparatus telemetry record submitted by LFB (LFB00023326) in order to 
make these estimations . 

Nl.l. 7 The breathing apparatus telemetry record (LFB00023326) states the time at 
which each individual fire fighter is logged onto the Entry Control Board 
(ECB). This is the point at which the fire fighter leaves the bridgehead and 
enters the fire sector. At Grenfell Tower, this would have meant entered the 
stair. I have attributed this time to any events observed by the fire fighter, 
shortly after they describe leaving the bridgehead. 

N1.1.8 Where no time is logged for a fire fighter on the ECB, I have used the 
breathing apparatus 'tally out' time. This time is when a telemetry tag is 
removed from the breathing apparatus to be inserted on the ECB. 

N1.1.9 For any events described on a fire fighter's return to the bridgehead I have 
attributed the time recorded in the breathing apparatus telemetry record 
(LFB00023326) as the 'end of wear' time. Once a fire fighter returns to the 
Bridgehead they remove their breathing apparatus, therefore the end of wear 
time would correspond to the time at which they have returned to the 
bridgehead. 
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Nl.l.lO For observed events or activities described which were remote from the 
Bridgehead, for example in the stair, lobby or flats, I have attributed these a 
time of 5 mins after the ECB time for any events near Level 10 or 10 mins 
after the ECB time for any events near Level 20. This is an estimation only, 
for the purposes of my analysis. 

Nl.l.ll Where fire fighters did not wear breathing apparatus, I have estimated a time 
of events based on the content of their individual witness statements and 
transcripts of cross examinations. 

N1.1.12 I am aware that the times I have given can only ever be Approximate. As I 
have explained in section 14, I have tried to focus on the most reliable sources 
of information, but inevitably it has been necessary to try to provide some 
Approximate timings, in order that I can make an assessment as to how the 
lobbies and stairs performed, from a design perspective. 

N1.1.13 Ifl am to make recommendations in Phase 2 as to potential changes to 
building design guidance, which is intended to protect fire fighters as well as 
building residents, it is important that I try and make an assessment of how 
the lobbies and stairs performed, by reference to the evidence, so that I can 
consider whether there are design changes which need to be considered. 

N2 Conditions in the stairs 

N2.1.1 Table N. I below records specific extracts I have made where a description is 
provided of the conditions within stair from resident witness statements and 
the examination transcripts from fire fighters. 

N2.1.2 The specific conditions I have extracted evidence on relate to visibility within 
the stair, presence of smoke and its colour, heat within the stair. This evidence 
is relevant to the performance of the fire safety features to prevent the spread 
of smoke and heat to the escape stair. 

N2.1.3 Table N. I also includes the specific fire fighter witness statement evidence 
that I have relied upon in my preliminary phase 1 report as presented there in 
Section 14.4.25. 

N2.1.4 Evidence of each event or observation has been attributed an Approximate 
time (as described in Section NI) and a specific location). The collated 
evidence is presented chronologically -as the events occurred on the 14th 
June 2017. 

N-2 Ove Arup & Partners Ltd 

BLAS0000035_0005 



REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Table N.l: Evidence of stair conditions 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Alves 
(IWS00000538) 
Level13 
Approx. 01:00 
Dorgu 
(MET00008603 
7) 
Level4 
Approx. 01:03 
Badillo, 
Transcript 29 
June 2018, p79 
Levels 2 and 4 
Approx. 01:03 

Alves 
(IWS00000538) 
Level13 
Approx. 01:08 

Zada 
(IWS00000989) 
LevelS 
Approx. 01:11 

Content- Stair conditions 

almost unnoticeable, in the lobby area. When I was on the staircase walking up to the 

13111 fl oor there was no fire alarm, no smoke and it was light. 

"there was no fire or smoke visible on approach to the tower. " 

"We would normally use dry riser on the floor below but as there was no signs of 
smoke or fire we went in on the forth. (s ic) " 

Q. What were the conditions like in the stair at the econd 

floor where the bridgehead was set up when you first got 

there? 

A. Completely clear. 

Q. What about in the tair · on the way up to the fourth 

floor? 

A. Completely clear. 

13. As I was coming down the stairs I passed two fire fighters taking a hose up. I did not 

stop to look into the 4111 floor and did not want to get in the ir way and stood to one 

side. I cannot remember any smoke. 1 didn't see anybody coming down the stairs 

when I came down. When I reached the bottom of the stai rs I went out via the main 

entrance and left the building. The CCTV camera picture provided by the police 

shows me leaving at 01:08.40. It shows lnes leaving slightly earlier at 0 1:04.25. 

9. As I was walking down the stairs it seemed to feel wanner, though it could 

have been in my head. I remember stopping as I was going down. I think I was 

on the 7th floor going down to the 6th floor. I realised the smell of smoke was 

getting stronger and wondered whether I was making the right decision to go 

down. I looked further down and I could see firefighters. 

10. I decided that I should walk towards the firefighters and that if my life was in 

danger they would surely warn me. and I could go back the other way. I canied 

on down towards them tmtil I was about a metre away. I think they were on the 

41
h floor. The door to the 4th floor was open and there were at least three of 

them; and I think they were unravelling hoses. 
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Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018, pllO 
Level3 
Approx. 01:15 

Hippel 
(MET00008330 
0) 
Level4 
Approx. 01:18 
Stem, Transcript 
19 July 2018, 
pl38 
LevelS 
Approx. 01:18 
Kassemdjian 
(IWS00000951) 
From Level 17 
Approx. 01 :20 

Chebiouni 
(IWS00000945) 
FromLevel9 
Approx. 01 :21 

Ahmed 
(IWSOOOOOO 14) 
Level4 
Approx. 01 :21 

Archer 
(MET0000800 1) 
Level6 
Approx. 01 :21 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

Q. Now, where were you tanding, do you think, when that 

was happening? 

A. I would've been in the stairwell of around about the 

third floor. 

Q. Okay. And what ort of condition were the e people in 

in terms of their physical condition? 

A. ot distressed. No sign of exposure of fire or smoke. 

They were fine. 

Witness statement identifies that stairs to Level 4 are clear of smoke. 

What about the conditions on the stair up to the 

fifth floor do you remember what they were like? 

A. C lear. 

35. On the 17th floor there was no visible smoke. At around the 14th floor in the 

stairwell the smoke started. It was white and it was getting stronger and thicker as 

we went further down. We were walking into it and I knew that it was going to get 

stronger and that it would continue getting worse the further we went. I was worried 

that I was taking the two of them to their death. I didn' t know if there was a way out. 

31. I took the stairs down. I know that you must not use the lift during a fire ~o 1 did not 

consider !Jslng it. The door to the stairwell was closed. There was smoke rn the 

stairwell. Again it was light, like exhaust smoke, pale grey In colour. '!'he lights were ~n 

in the stairwell. I want slowly down the stairs. I couldn't see Hanan in front of me; she 

was gone already. The stairs weren't slippery and did not SGom wet. I don't rememb~r 

seeing hoses·ln tha stalrwek I could smell that burning plastic sme_ll. As 1 descended) 

·i:ould hear ~eople speaking but couldn't tell wnere ·the v~icea ware coming from. · · ·. · 

38. We did not stay there for long a matter of seconds there was thick black 
smoke coming from the hal lway into the stairs. The smoke was very th ick 
and had a strong taste like metal. The smoke was only on that noor and we 
past through it as we went down. We continued down to the third floor 
where we had to change stairs. The door out of the stairs on the third noor 
was closed but we just pushed it open. Then we went down the second 
stairs to the ground floor and out of the Tower. I have seen a still from the 

Wintess statement identifies that stairs to Level 6 are clear of smoke. 
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Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Abell, Transcript 
2 July 2018, pS9 
LevelS 
Approx. 01 :21 

O'Beime, 
Transcript 2 July 
2018,p196 
Level 7 to Level 
8 
Approx. 01 :22 
O'Beime, 
Transcript 2 July 
2018,p202 
Level9 
Approx. 01 :22 
Ali 
(IWS00000003) 
Clear From 
Level1S 
Approx. 01 :23 
Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018, pllS 
LevelS 
Approx. 01 :2S 

Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018, pll8 
Level6 
Approx. 01 :2S 

Kassemdjian 
(IWS000009S1) 
FromLevel8 
Approx. 01 :26 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

And the condition in the tair as you went up to 

the fifth floor, what wa that like to tart with? 

A. That was clear. 

Q. And as you got up toward the fifih floor? 

A. Still clear. 

Q. It remained clear, did it? 

. Yes. 

Q. Can you describe the condition that you found on the 

tairway on the way up? 

A. It was clear on the way up on the stairs. 

What were the condition in the stair on your way 

up from level 8 to le el 9 like? 

A. It wa clear. 

-~t...ci/ 
52.1 ran so fast wit~. A guy with a little baby came running past me not 

looking just going fast. There was no smoke on stairs all the way down and the 
lights were on and I didn't see any fire when I was inside the Tower. The 

Q. Ju t pau ing there what were the conditi n like at the 

fifth floor in the tairs fir t of all? 

. In tbe tairs, clear. 

Q. o you go up to the s i th, and what wa the staitway 

like on the way up to the ixth? 

A. At that point clear. 

36. Rita was going slowly, one step, two steps at a time. She was holding the rails on one 

side, and on to Fung on the other. On about the 8th floor Rita started coughing. As we 

progressed the smoke got thicker still. On the 4th floor the smoke was even thicker 

and greyer. Still it was not so thick that you couldn' t see through it but it was a 

complete mist. 
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Reference Content- Stair conditions 
Level affected 
at time 

Al-Arasi 
(IWS00000005) 
From Level 13 
Stairs clear 
down to about 
Level4 where 
smoke is coming 
into the stairs 
from the lobby 
door when 
opened. 
Approx. 01 :26 

Khalloud 
(IWS000004 73) 
From Level 11 
Approx. 01 :27 

Badillo, 
Transcript 29 
June 2018, p122 
Level15 
Approx. 01 :27 

Ho 
(IWS00000925) 
From Level 10 
Approx. 01:27 

38. I think that at every stage I could still see the bottom of the stairs. It smelled like a 

bonftre. By the 8th floor we were engulfed but it was still possible to see. I 

n.·member once I was in Hyde Park and was surrounded by a thick grey mist, it was 

like that. I am sure I could have seen the ceiling had I looked up, or the hand rail . 

knowledge that in the event of a fi re that you should not use the lifts. We 
opened the doors to the stairs. lt was lit and we had no problem seeing. I 
could not see any smoke when we opened the door to the stairs but could 
smell the burning smell which was stronger. Progress down the stairs was 
slow due to my friend walking with a stick and she was struggling to support 
herself and I was trying to help her. We stayed close to the bannister on the 
stairs. 

20. As we made our way down the burning smell became stronger and as we went 
down we started to see smoke. I have been shown a "smoke text descriptors• 
with some images and I think it was about C. When we reached I think the ih 
floor we saw two fi re fighters making their way up the stairs. They had 
something over their faces I am not sure what it was. They didn't say anything 
to us and we didn't speak to them. 

21 . On I think the 41h or 51h floor there was th ick black smoke on the stairs, it was 
coming from the lift lobby area where a lady was opening the door from that 
floor to the stairs. As the door was opened I looked into the lift lobby area of 
that floor but could not see anything it was totally black. I am not sure if th is 
was because there were no lights or because of the smoke. 

22. lt was very scary, it was very black on the stairs and we went down through the 
smoke breathing it in. As we went down the stairs to the bottom the smoke 
diminished and there was no smoke at all on the oround floor. I have been 

45. The stairs were clear; l do not remember seeing any blockages of people and 

they were quite clean. There was not much smoke in the sta ir well; there was 

only a thin layer of smoke on the cei ling of the stairs, as the door to the 

hallway had been opened. You could smell this . However l was able to stm1 

breathing properly in stairs. 

Q. What were the condition like in the tairwell wh n you 

got into the tairwell at the 15th floor level? 

A. I believe it was just some light, wispy smoke. It was 

smokey, but not like it was in the lobby. 

Q. Wa it breathable air? 

A. Yes. 
26. There is a door from the landing to the stairs which you push, and which automatically closes 

behind you. I pushed it open and began to run down the stairs. I was scared of dying so I ran 

fast. I did not see any other people on the stairs. There was no smoke on the stairs. I am not 

sure how long it took me to run down the stairs; however, it would normally take me about 3 or 

4 minutes to walk down the stairs, so it would have been less time than that. 
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Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Hippel, 
Transcript 19 
July 2018, p42 
Level 6, Approx. 
01:30 

Hippel, 
Transcript 19 
July 2018, p65 
Between Level 6 
and Level16 
Approx. 01:30 

Stem, Transcript 
19 July 2018, 
p152 
Level6 
Approx. 01:30 

Stem, Transcript 
19 July 2018, 
p164 
Between Level 6 
and Level16 
Approx. 01:30 

Ahmed 
(IWS00000388) 
From Level 18 
Approx. 01:31 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

Q. What were the condition on the tairs like? 

A. lear, clear. 

Q. Temperature? 

A. Clear - normal. 

Q. Visibility clear? 

A. Yes. 

Q. o signs of smoke? 

A. Not that I could see. 

Q. Did any of them show any signs of smoke inhalation? 

A. None that l saw. 

Q. Were none of them spluttc1ing or coughing? 

Page 65 

A. No, not at all. 

Q. \Vhen you came back out what were the condition like in 

the tairwcll at that p int? 

till clear. 

Q. So no change? 

. ln th tain ell no cban c. 

Q. Did you cc whether or not they were uffcring any 1gn 

f m ke inhalati n? 

. ot that I noticed, no. 

Q. On your way up what was the air in the taircase like? 

. Clear. 

Q. Wa it clear all the way up? 

A. Yes. 

same weight. It's completely wooden and you push from the lobby to open it. There was 

light smoke in the stair well. We went down the stairs and we saw our neighbour from 
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Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Fletcher 
(IWS00000913) 
From Levell 6 
Approx. 01:31 

Mekonnen 
(IWS0000091 2) 
Between Level 
19 and Level 5 
Approx. 01:32 

Hippel, 
Transcript 19 
July 2018, p98 
Levell6 
Approx. 01:35 
Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018, pl 83 
Smoke logged 
from Level 8 to 
Level20 at 
01:35 
From Level 20 
to Level3 at 
02 :00 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

46. As we went out onto the stairwell through the fire exit door from our landing the smoke was 

not as thick. Once we were on the stairwell I could see smoke coming from above as people 

opened f!re doors above on the higher levels. 

As we proceeded down the stairs, people were opening the fire ex its on their floors which 

meant more smoke was coming into where we were on the stairwell . The f!re doors on the 

54. When we were on the 6th floor there was smoke below us and I thought th is was where we 

18. I got to the top of the stairs Oil my floor. I did not wall! to go back ill to my flat , so I decided 

to igllore the advice that had been shouted in the stailwell, to go back up. and I headed back 

down the stairs with my daughters. There was no one on the stairwell at tllis point. As we 

were walking down the stail·s, the smoke was becomillg thicker and thicker. It was dense 

and dark grey but I could see tl1rough it. I was able to breathe without any difficulty. 

Q. What were the conditions back out in the stai1well when 

you left the 16th floor? 

A. Still pretty - still clear. 

Q. -- from 1.35 to 1.59, ju t before 2 o'clock so 

25 minute . During any of that period of time, when 

you've been up and then down again, would you say that 

it wa possible to evacuate anybody from any floor down 

that protected taircase successfully and afely? 

A. I don't think so. Not from that time. Even from the 

eighth floor was smoke-logged so it would've been very 

difficult. It may have been feasible but they would've 

been unconscious, they would need to be rescued by BA 
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Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Secrett, 
Transcript 5 July 
2018, p79 
Witness is 
unclear on 
whether Level6 
or Level 8. 
Dorgu is clear 
its 8 
Approx. 01:35 

O'Beime, 
Transcript 3 July 
2018, p23 (2nd 
day) 
LevellO 
Approx. 01:35 
(based on Hippel 
BA telemetry) 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

Q. And you come into the tairwell, and what are the 

condition like in the staitwell? 

A. Smoky. 

Q. Smoky. How similar to the smokine in the lobby? 

A. ot as bad as tbe lobby. I remember it wa a little bit 

clearer but not a lot clearer. 

Q. How about illtunination? Could you ee any light? 

A. Yeah, there was a bulkhead on the wall. I just remember 

seeing it on each floo r just glowing. It wasn' t-

I wouldn't say it was giving me any useful light, it was 

just glowing. So I wouldn't call it lighting. 

"The crew walked past me and a they were going down 

I aid to the two guy 'we have to go down, it' too 

moky."' 

Page 23 

You explain why that was an excuse. You then say: 

"The guy asked me 'What about my father?' r aid we 

will have to get another crew up there." 

Having told him that did you radio down to make 

ure that another crew was go ing to come up to the 16th 

floor to carry out the re cue, if it was po ible? 

A. No. Obviously the conditions in there were getting 

smoky because of the- I 've said that the guy put his 

hood over his face. o, as I aid, my main concern wa 

to get the e two people out and then speak to someone 

downstairs to tell them that there was someone up on the 

16th floor. 
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Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
O'Beime, 
Transcript 3 July 
2018, p22 (2nd 
day) 
LevellO 
Approx. 01:35 
(based on Hippel 
BA telemetry) 

O'Beime, 
Transcript 3 July 
2018, p20 (2nd 
day) 
Smoke starting 
to get bad 
between Level 5 
and Level9 
between 
Approx. 01:30 
and 01 :38 
O'Beime, 
Transcript 3 July 
2018, p27 (2nd 
day) 
Level4 
Approx. 01:38 
(based on Hippel 
BA telemetry) 

Archer 
(MET0000800 1) 
From Level 6 to 
Level2 
Approx. 01:40 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

Then at the bottom of the page you say: 

" M TER and FF HfPPEL came back within 5 minute ' 

and poke to me in the half landing where I was till 

standing." 

an you ju t confinn for me which that was. Is that 

still the halflanding between the 9th and the 1Oth 

floors? 

A. That's right, yes. 

Q. What were the air condition like at that point, do you 

remember? 

A. Yeah, l thought they were clear. 

A. Tt must have started to get- a T said when T- on 

the ninth floor it was starting to get smoky, which 

I noticed wben the guy put his top over bis face. 

l think -I'd have to only guess really, but it must 

have been around tbe fiftb floor that it started to get 

hea . So it' as just before- it was a bit before 

where the hose went into the doors. 

How seriously compromised with smoke was propping 

the foutth-floor lobby door open making it? 

A. What, at that time? 

Q. Ye. 

A. Do you mean like then the conditions'? You want to know 

the conditions'? 

Q. ony my question wasn't articulate. Let me try again. 

When you saw the smoke coming out from the 

fourth-floor lobby into the stain.vell through the door, 

was that moke making the condition in the tain.vell 

Page 27 

noticeably worse? 

A. Ye. 

"Myself and Tom then forced it open and wedged our bodies into the 
entrance so it wouldn't close back again. The windows must have been 
open to have made this happen. As soon as we wedged the door open 
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Reference Content- Stair conditions 
Level affected 
at time 

Doulova 
(IWS00000834) 
From Level 20 
Approx. 01:41 

thick black smoke came out, and filled the lobby area, the visibility was 
bad, I couldn't see the stairwell door. 
The hose on the 6th floor came from the outlet on the fifth floor, not the 
sixth. This was a problem because the stairwell filled with smoke from 
the sixth floor because the hose prevented the door to the stairwell 
closing 

"I don't think we got that far into the flat really because we expended 
a lot of energy. 

Me and Tom made our way back down the stairwell. I don 't know how 
long I was in there for, the BA board would probably tell you that 
information, but I don 't know myself At this point residents were 
coming down the stairwell, and at this time the stairwell was filling up 
with smoke. " 

70. We just ''ent for it running a~ quickly as we could down the :tairs. The vi ibi lity in 

th · stair-,cll \\US pour. but I could make out the tcps. handrail and Ill) feet <.IS I was 

look ing down \\ettehin • \\here I ""s putti n ' m) feet. At diflcren ·c st:P.:s m) 

h sband kept calli ng back to me to make sure I "a still behind hi m. fter checking I 

"a' alnght. we continued do" n the sta irs as fast we c uld. 

7 I . t\ \\e descended fLtnher. ''c did not sec any other resident~ o though that we \\ere 

the last ones out. The ·moke :cared me. lt took t\\O ancmpt tor me to lca\e our fla 

and I can unc.h.:r tanc.l '~hy others \\ OUic.l not have "anted I leave their homes. 

72. \\"e C\Cntually amc a ·ro Jirclig.htcr comin • up the stair-veil ''i th breathing 

appamtw , but "e kept runnin' past them. 

73. The funha down \\C wrnt. the thicker the ~mokc be ame lt tilled the entire 

tai r-¥el l. 

74. Betw·een the sixth to fourth floor. the smoke:! ''as rcall) thick. I aw around 6-10 

firelighter . \\ho had opened the d or to one of the 11 ors and their hose' were 

runn ing into the landing. I did not engage with the. e firelighte~ . 

7 . ftc r \\C pa.~sed the fourth floor and dmm ont the \\ alkwa) landing th smoke had 

ub id\:d and things be a me ' [car and we began to walk. 
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REPORT OF DR BARBARA LANE 

SPECIALIST FIELD FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

ON BEHALF OF: GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Reference Content- Stair conditions 
Level affected 
at time 
Bettinson, 
Transcript 19 
July 2018, p212 
Level6 
01:41 

Bettinson, 
Transcript 19 
July 2018, p216 
Levels 7 to 10 
Approx. 01:41 

Q. an you de cribe what conditions were like in the 

tairwell a you went up between the third, fourth and 

fifth floors? 

A. From what I remember -- I think I said we started 

carching from the third, but 1 can't remember where we 

actually started earching, but I know it was about the 

sixth floor, becau e you could make out the number in 

the lobby, that's when it tarted getting smokier and 

darker and then when we got up to the seventh it was 

really smoky, and you couJd sort of make out objects and 

then-

Q. r11 come on to above the sixth floor in due course, 

but-

A. That's where it started getting smokier and harder to 

cc. 

Q. You say the smoke wa · black; can you desctibe for us the 

den ity of that smoke as you went up between the eventh 

and 1Oth floors? 

A. In the stainvcll it wasn't as bad, like you could still 

sort of make it out, but when you opened the ninth 

floor, you couldn't really ee anything. You could 

probably ee about maybe a foot in front of you. 

Q. n each of the floor a you went up, statting on the 

eventh noor --

A. It got progressively worse. 
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REPORT OF DR BARBARA LANE 

SPECIALIST FIELD FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

ON BEHALF OF: GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Reference Content- Stair conditions 
Level affected 
at time 
Merrion, 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, 
p7 
NA 

Q. Seeing residents coming down were they coming down 

without the assistance of a BA set can you remember? 

A. Very few were. Maybe one or two I think I remember 

ccing. 

Q. an you remember the phy ical condition of the residents 

who wer evacuating at that time? 

. The weren't in a good state, to be honest. 

SIR MARTIN MOORE-BICK: Can you e.1:plain that a bit more? 

Page 7 

A. They were struggling to breathe a they were coming out, 

coughing. Yeah, things like that 

Badillo, 
Transcript 29 
June 2018, p151 
Level20 
Approx. 01:45 

A. From what I remember, it was getting thicker the further 

Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018, p156 
Between Level 
11 and Level 20 
Approx. 01:45 

we went up the tower. 

Q. What, the smoke was? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What about the visibility, was that getting more 

difficult? 

A. On the stairwell 1 can remember visibility was okay up 

to the 20th, because when I got up to the 20th, llooked 

into the lobby, which was no visibility at all. So it 

was - it was different. 

When you ay it got darker, what got darker? 

A. The stairwell. 

Q. Was it the light that wa fading? Why was it getting 

darker? 

A. Difficult to. Sa it could've been that the smoke was 

obscuring the ambient lighting in the stairwell, it 

could be that the lighting had failed, it could be that 

it was just so smoky in the area where I was, there's 

a pocket of moke here that l couldn't see. And also, 

you get carbonaceous build-up on your face mask. So 

often in a job you will think you can't sec, but if you 

wipe your face mask, although you're smearino stuff 

around, sometimes you can get a clear slither of view. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Gallagher, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
pl5 
Level9 
Approx. 01:50 

Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018,pl70 
Level20 
Approx. 01:50 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

First of all, could you de cri be for u the smoke 

condition and the vi ibility you encatmtered between 

the 6th and the 9th floors? 

A. It was all pretty clear to be honest, until we got to 

the 9th floor, wbere we found the two -the lady and 

Page 15 

her daughter, and then I remember standing in the lobby 

door to the stairwell and J looked - I wa sort of 

flitting in and out, and I looked out and it seemed to 

get some white smoke~ quite hazy, and I remember saying 

"There's smoke coming up the stairs". And then I looked 

again and then it was pretty much pitch black coming up 

the stairs. 

Q. So the white had turned to black? 

. Yes. 

Q. Quite quickly from the sound of it. 

A. Yeah, it wa literally a case of came in J said what 

I said, I went and looked again and the conditions were 

like that straight away. 

Q. Had it become den er? You mentioned the white smoke was 

hazy; was the black make denser? 

A. In terms of visibility, yes. 

So we decided to leave. I picked up my hose. 

I remember walking out from the lobby into the stairwell 

and looking down into the stairwell, and it ' as totally 

pitch black, which it shouldn't be; it should be clear. 

It should be a protected stairwell. 
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REPORT OF DR BARBARA LANE 

SPECIALIST FIELD FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

ON BEHALF OF: GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Reference Content- Stair conditions 
Level affected 
at time 
Dorgu, Q. Heat in the stairwell? 
Transcript 9 July 
2018, pl71 A. Heat in the stairweU, heat in the lobby, heat in the 
Level20 
Approx. 01:50 Page 171 

Secrett, 
Transcript 5 July 
2018,p87 
Level20 
Approx. 01:50 

flat. 1t houldn't have been- it came up through you. 

It's like being heated from the inside out. It's quite 

unpleasant. It wasn't normal. Even though we'd run 

a long way in breathing apparatus, it still was 

extremely hot and makes you a little bit-- a little bit 

stressed. 

Q. Had the conditions in the staitwell changed when you 

went out into it from when you had first left it to go 

into the 20th-floor lobby? 

A. They'd worsened, yeah, on the way down. 

into the stairwell. We were at the top of the stai rwell 

and we couldn't ee anything really. 

You had pockets of air on the way down, ma. be, 

pockets - at times you could see things . ou could make 

things out, but for the most time it was fairly pitch 

black. 

Before you come our into the lobby area, could you 

de cri be for u the air conditions in the tairwell at 

that level level 20? 

A. Yeah, it was smoked out to the point where- I remember 

Dave Badillo, when we got to the top of the stairs --

like I say, I'd lost sort of the situation a! awareness 

of what floor we were on, I just kept climbing, and 

I remember Dave shouting like, "It's here", and he was 

kind of holding the door. But I wasn't-- I could hear 

him, but I had to get to the door and almost ph, sically 

grab hold of him to see him, so that's how smoky it was. 

It's not like I could look up the stairs and see him; 

I had to get right on top of him before I could see him. 

So it was fairly smoky, ye.ah. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Murphy, 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, 
p38 
Smoke starting 
fromLeve14 
Approx. 01:51 

Merrion, 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, 
p9 
From Level3 to 
Level14 
Approx. 01:52 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

A. No, at the bridgehead, there was no smoke, it was clear, 

and as we made our way up the building, from about the 

5th floor it became light smoke, and then - 4th floor 

light smoke, 5th floor became very, very thick acrid 

smoke. Visibility was reduced to nothing. 

"There wa moke on the tairs from the 2nd floor 

all the way up to the 14th noor o if we had tried to 

get people out from the 14th floor they wouldn't ha e 

made it down. " 

Now, ju t dealing with that short paragraph, is that 

a view you had on the night or is it a view you formed 

later on after your experiences within the tower? 

A. o that wa at the time . 

. . . (from plO) 
Q. You refer here to saying that conditions deteriorated 

fro m the 2nd floor onwards. The bridgehead I think at 

that stage was on the 2nd floor. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you ure that the smoke conditions were as you 

de cribe from the 2nd floor onwards and not, ay, higher 

up, the 5th floor, for example? 

A. It may have been higher. 3rd or 4th floor, I think it 

was. 

Q. o slightly higher up from the bridgehead? 
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REPORT OF DR BARBARA LANE 

SPECIALIST FIELD FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

ON BEHALF OF: GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Reference Content- Stair conditions 
Level affected 
at time 
Law son, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
pl37 
Air breathable 
From Level 3 to 
about Level 5. 
Fully smoke 
logged from 5 to 
18 
Approx. 01:53 

Secrett, 
Transcript 5 July 
2018,p106 
Level20, 
Approx. 01:55 

Secrett, 
Transcript 5 July 
2018, pl07 
Between Level 
20 and Level 3 
Approx. 01:55 

Q. an you remember how many floors you went up where you 

weren't under air, as it were? 

A. It wasn't very far. I think we made it up maybe two or 

three flights of stairs before the atmosphere became 

irrespirable for u . At that point we donned our BA 

masks. 

A. I've no idea. The reality is we had complete sensory 

depri ation from the moment of putting our masks on. 

You could hear muffled voice . We had no visibility. 

We got up the stair by feeling up the banister . It 

could've been 5 minutes could've been 10 minutes 

I really don't know . 

. . . (p138) 

Q. an you remember whether the lighting in the stairwell 

wa working as you went up? 

A. The lighting was on; it bad no effect on the staircase. 

Q. Can you remember wa it illuminated from the bridgehead 

all the way up to the 18th floor? 

A. 1 can't. The smoke was so dense for us going up the 

staircase, until we went to each landing and approached 

the landing walls, we couldn't see the lights at all. 

Q. You then say: 

"The smoke was thick in the stairwell and I could 

not see my hand in front of my face." 

How was that in comparison with the conditions in 

the stairwell when you left the sta irwell to go --

A. They were definitely worse. 

Q. Did the conditions in the tainvell change as you made 

your way down? 

A. o they were smoky the whole way down. 

Q. What about when you neared the bridgehead, wa it sti ll 

as bad? 

A. I think once we got to the bridgehead, they must have 

cleared up because I knew we was getting out. 

N-17 Ove Arup & Partners Ltd 

BLAS0000035_0020 



REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Secrett, 
Transcript 5 July 
2018,pl09 
Between Levels 
20 and 8 
Approx. 01:55 

Badillo 
(METOOO 1 0080) 
From Level 20 
to Levell5 
Approx. 01:55 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

Q. Roughly at what level did the air condition in the 

tairway sta1t to clear before you got to the 

bridgehead? 

A. It certainly wasn't before we met Firefighter Murpby, so 

somewhere between the eighth and the second. 

Q. Right. 

A. I'd say fairly close to the second, maybe a floor or two 

above it it started to clear. I just remember when we 

got to the bridgehead, I knew we was nearly out and -

Q. We have you tallying in at 01.57.15. So you ay by that 

time e entially d you that the tairway wa 

unu able without breathing apparatus? 

A. Yeah definitely. 

"I managed to lead us back to the stairwell and as we got a few flights 
down, I suggested that we leave the hoses in situ as carrying them was 
slowing us down. We left them by the wall, so as to not block the stairs, 
I think on the 18th floor. The heat was much more intense and the 
stairwell was completely smoke filled so visibility was really poor. I 
couldn't see a thing. When we reached the 15th floor, I spoke to Chris 
SECRETT and he did a gauge check. The smoke was getting thicker 
and thicker, hotter and hotter. " 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FI ELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Badillo, 
Transcript 29 
June 2018, p l62 
Level20 
Approx. 01:55 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

Ju t unpacking that a little bit, when you got out 

from the lobby on the 20th floor into the stairwell on 

the 20th floor what were the air conditions like in the 

stairwell? 

. When we fir t got out of the 20th floor, I remember 

being able to see more than in the actual lobby area 

but as soon as we tarted going down, conditions got 

worse started getting much much hotter and we couldn't 

see a thing. 

Q. I lad the conditions in the stair at level 20 changed from 

when you left the tair to go into level 20 lift 

lobby-

A. Yes. 

Q. - and when you came back out? How had they changed? 

A. They had worsened, much hotter and much less visibility. 

They had changed quite a lot. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Murphy, 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, 
p39 
Level 7 
Approx. 01:55 

Gillman, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p63 
Light smoke 
fromLevel3 
Approx. 01:56 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

A. My only recollection of passing anyone on the stairs was 

on the 7th floor we passed a crew from North Kensington 

on their way down. Smoke conditions were very, very bad 

there. The only reason I recognised one of the 

firefighters, which was Firefighter Badillo, is be's the 

same height as me with a similar sort of stance. So we 

were having difficulty locating what floor we were on 

because of the smoke conditions and it didn't appear 

that e\•ery floor had numbers on the wall. So Dave 

Badillo showed me that underneath the emergency 

lighting, if you put your hand O\'er the lighting and put 

your torch on, there was maU numbers underneath. That 

was the 7th floor, so from there upwards we were able to 

gauge our position. 

. . . (and from p46) 
My thoughts were on the way up: we can't get anyone 

down this staircase. It's too moke-logged. It wa n't 

afe. I didn't know if there was another staircase, so 

as we were searching around the landing, we were looking 

in case there was a second staircase at the other side 

of the building. There wasn't So I had to try and 

make a quick decision on what was best for everybody, 

To be clear arc you aying that immediately on 

leaving the bridgehead on the mezzanine conditions had 

become moky and hot? 

A. o. orry, that' a bit confusing. 

It was like wispy smoke. Not at the bridgehead, 

like immediately when you went up to the next floor, 

maybe the third and the fourth, you'd get to the grey 

wispy smoke again. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Dorgu 
(MET00008603 
7) 
From Level 20 
down 

Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018, pl81 
Stairs smoke 
logged from 
Level 20 down 
to Level3 
Approx. 01:57 

Roberts, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, pl21 
LevellO, 01:57 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

"Due to the dark I couldn 't see if any doors were open and floor 
numbers were not written on well (wall) if(at) all. The escape route 
was hot and filled with smoke. I 've been in much hotter buildings but 
we were on the twentieth floor with no air and pitch black. None of it 
made sense. Smoke going up the stairwell is just (due to) people 
holding doors open to get out but I was surprised (it was) so thick, 
dark and high. The smoke never normally goes two floors plus above 
the (level of the) bridgehead. ... I set off down the stairs but the smoke 
was so thick. Where there was no glass from the lobby I couldn 't see 
my hand in .front of my face or even see my torch. As we went down it 
was getting hotter and hotter as, although we didn 't know it at the 
time, we were getting closer and closer to the fire. " 

Q. That's vety clear. 

So you get down to the bridgehead, and how far 

before you reach the second floor did that dense, thick 

moke reach? 

A. I can't remember. I can't remember. 

Q. Was it many floors above the bridgehead or was it 

ju t --

A. Maybe the fourth. I would say around about the fourth , 

the third. I remember coming into Ugbt. But, to be 

honest, we were pretty exhausted. I couldn't really 

stand up, I was just- there was nothing I could say 

really, I couldn' t speak. 

Q. ow in that same paragraph, you ay vi ibility was 

good. At that time, were the tairwells lit, can you 

remember? 

A. Yeah, it was pretty clear, pretty light. You could see 

the person in front of you as you were walking up all 

the way up to possibly around floor 10, I think it was. 

Q. So just to be clear, your recollection is that the 

tairwell was lit up until the noor 10 level? 

A. Y cab, I think so. 

Q. Can you de cribe the smoke conditions you encountered on 

tloor I 0? 

A. Again, it wasn' t any difference to downstairs, really. 

Visibility was pretty good. There was a slight 

temperature increase, but nothing that sort of threw it 

out of the ordinary. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Roberts, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, pll8 
Level4, 01:57 

Watson, 
Transcript 24 
July 201 8, pll8 
9'h floor, 01 :58 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

Fir t of all on what floor after you'd left the 

bridgehead did you fi rst encmmter smoke? 

A. l think it was ju t between floor 3 and floor 4. 

Q. Can you describe the smoke when you first encountered 

it? 

A. It was pretty clear. Light, wispy white, grey smoke. 

othing too spectacular, really. 

Q. That' what you meant when you ay isibly it didn't 

look too much? 

A. You could see perfectly fine. 

Q. You retumed to the bridgehead, and what did you do 

there? 

A. hat's where we tarted up and went under air and put 

our EDBA sets. 

A. So thi was quite a pertinent moment for me. I now know 

tbis to be 01.58 from the operational re ponse from what 

the Brigade's printed. So my own firefighter came down. 

He said, "I need two sets" . I aid to the next two 

people, "Get started up" and he said, "No no, I need 

two BA sets". o 1 said, "What do you need them for?" 

He said "The stairwell's too moke-logged to get people 

down". And it was quite a sort of telling moment, 

really, that the escape route ' e're using is now 

smoke-logged. 

So I gave him the two sets, and I now know that 

a crew from Paddington wa up in the flat with these 

people on the ninth floor and we successfully brought 

them down. 

Q. Wa thi after Firefighter Fe! ton had come dO\vn to the 

bridgehead from a deployment? 

A. Yes. He'd already been deployed and I believe the crew 

radioed them to come down and collect two sets. 
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REPORT OF DR BARBARA LANE 

SPECIALIST FIELD FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

ON BEHALF OF: GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Reference Content- Stair conditions 
Level affected 
at time 
Merrion, 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, 
pl4 
Levell4 
Approx. 02:00 

Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018,pl82 
Approx. 02:00 

Gillman, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p66 
Getting worse 
from 4 up to 11 
Approx. 02:00 

Q. You ay in your tatement that they were anxiou to 

I ave the flat but y u ad 1 ed otherwi e. 

Why did you advi e for them to tay in the flat? 

. Because the stairwell was so smoke-logged that I didn't 

think it was a good idea for them to come through that. 

Q. If they had elected to leave their flat and gone down in 

any event, given the condition in the lobby and the 

tairwell, what do you think would've happened? 

. I don't think they would've been able to make it to the 

bottom. 

A. Ye ·, around about 2 o'clock, ye . I remember looking 

outside at my watch and it was 2.05 and the entire 

building was on fire. 

Q. So by that time, just before 2 am on the 14th, would you 

ay it was po ible to evacuate anybody down the 

protected stairca e --

A. o. 

"So we got to about the eleventh (11th) and twelfth 

(12th) floor ... " 

Stopping there, can you de cribe moke conditions a. 

you went from the fourth up into the 11th floors? 

A. They got worse. I'd ay visibility wa reduced but 

partially because partly because there wasn't much 

lighting. You could make out the outlines of your crew. 

You couldn't really ee them that well. But I remember 

making out Firefighters Mills and Campbell because we 

know them. 

Q. Can you remember what colour the moke wa a you 

ascended up the tower? 

A. Grey. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Gillman, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p67 
No lights from 
41h 11th floor 
Approx. 02:00 

Roberts, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, pl22 
Smoke easing 
after Level 11 at 
Approx. 02:00 

Femandes 
(MET00008329 
2) 
From Level 2 to 
Level20 
Approx. 02:01 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

Q. You mentioned lighting in the stairwell· as you went 

from the fourth to the 11th floor can you remember 

wh ther the tairwell wa 1· t all h way up or 

pruiially? 

t wa n't lit. I'd a a ter about the the fourth floor 

rew Manager Wiglcy noted the smoke 

le el eased as you went up the bui lding. Does that 

accord with your r collection? 

A. orry, can you say that again? 

Q. Ye . Crew Manager Wigley noted in hi tatement that 

smoke level in fact ea ed a you went up the tower. 

A. Yeah, sort of as you got past I think it wa about 

floor 10 or 11, it ort of slightly -- the going was 

pretty straightfonvard, quite simple. We just walked up 

there. There was nothing again that tood out and aid 

there was a major fire going on outside. 

"As I climbed up the stairs the smoke became thicker and in between 
floors two and five the lights went out. As the smoke became thicker 
visibility was reduced to almost zero. Firefighter WILLIAMS and I had 
to stay in physical contact with each other as we climbed the stairs. I 
struggled to see any reference to what floor we were on. There were 
lights on the floor numbers, however I could not see the number 
displayed. 

I lost track of how many floors we had climbed, I shouted to 
Firefighter WILLIAMS to enter the next floor area to find out what 
floor we were on. We went through the next door to the right. The 
smoke was thick and visibility was almost zero. Looking extremely 
closely at the walls I found as ign that displayed "14 ". I realised we 
were six floors short ofwhere we needed to be. 

We started to climb the stairs. As we ascended the smoke intensified 
and the temperature started to rise. We did not pass anyone on the 
staircase. Despite wearing breathing apparatus I could taste the 
smoke." 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Femandes, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
p175 
Corroborating 
witness 
statement 
Approx. 02:01 

Eden 
(MET000080 19) 
From Level 3 to 
Level20 
Approx. 02:02 

Gallagher, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
p23 
Level9 
Approx. 02:10 

Nelson 
(MET00007785) 
From Level4 to 
Level 7 
Approx. 02:13 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

Q. Can you remember whether the stairwell was illuminated 

a you went up and if o, how far? 

A. Initially yes. onditions began to fade after what 

I believed to be floor S, so it was only two or three 

floors up from the bridgehead. They quite quickly got 

very, very poor. So there was illumination, I know 

there was bulkhead lighting, but the thickness and the 

colour of the smoke made that lighting useless. 
I asked Tom if he could see any numbers as it felt like we had been walking in the dark, blind and not 

knowing where we were and he sa id that he couldn' t see anything. We continued up and I heard the 

EDBA team in front say, "We' re going to 12 - tllis is us". We waited for about 30 seconds for them clear 

out of the way and continued up with the other EDBA team who were going to the 14th floor. The smoke 

had thinned out a little bit by now and coming up, I had seen that doors were being held open by bits of 

hose or were being wedged opened. I kept kicking things under foot, maybe bits of clothing and it started 

tlllln us, were only going to the and 12th and 14tll floors , but we continued on up. No one was in front of 

us and we were able to speed up a little bit. It went really quiet and I couldn ' t hear anytlling coming from 

above us. I could hear shouting conling from below but that is all. I saw the numbers 15 and 17 on the 

walls, but they were hard to make out and it was hard to figure out where we were. By the time we got to 

the 20th floor, it was much smokier again and we really struggled to see the number 20 on the wall and 

had to wipe it down, as there was a lot of soot. The concept of time is difficult to judge but I tllink it took 

between 8-10 minutes to get up to the 20th floor. I don't recall there being any obstmctions on the 

stairwell and there must have been some lighting as it wasn' t pitch black. It almost felt claustrophobic as I 

could barely see and had to rely on my trai11ing and other senses to negotiate my way up the stairs. I had 

to concentrate really hard to figure out where we were. 

Q. Can you d crib for us lhe condition on th stairwell 

as you went back up to the 9th floor . 

A. It was heavily smoke-logged. The light on the stainveiJ 

was helping us, but it was heavily smoke-logged. 
The staircase was busy with other Firefighters as we progressed to floor nine (9). l recall it being hot but 

believe this was more due to my kit than the heat of the building, however it was smoky and the visibil ity 

was poor especially between floors four ( 4) and seven (7). l cannot recall hearing alarms just lots of 

houting going on around me. I do not remember if there were hoses on the stairs but remember people 

being helped or carried by Firefighters. I was holding onto the stair rail as I progressed up the stairs. The 

smoke was covering the floor signs and the lighting was poor. l recall having to waft smoke away to 

discover what floor we had reached. There was no illuminated numbers on the walls. J did not recall 

seeing any 'Fire Exit ' signs on the stairways. 
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REPORT OF DR BARBARA LANE 

SPECIALIST FIELD FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

ON BEHALF OF: GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Reference Content- Stair conditions 
Level affected 
at time 
Yeoman 
(MET00007862) 
From Level 7 to 
Level9 
Approx. 02:13 

Flanagan 
(MET000077 65) 
From Level4 to 
Level15 
Approx. 02:13 

Bell, Transcript 
11 September 
2018,p48 
About Level 12. 
Stair door is 
opened onto 
unknown floor 
filling stair with 
hot smoke 
Approx. 02:13 

Roberts, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p127 
Stair clear at 
Level22 at 
Approx. 02:15 

We made our way up the staircase and got to the 7th floor. I remember it was the 7th 
because there was a bright light on the wall that was shining through the thick dense 
smoke. The light did not help conditions and I could not see anything, but when I got 
clo e to the wall there wa a ign saying it was the 7th floor. From here I got my 
bearings and knew that it was only four flights of stairs to the 9th floor. There was no 
real heat, just very thick smoke, which is not meant to happen. The stairca es are 
meant to have clean air to assist fire crews with search and rescues. There was a lot of 
external noi e with people houting to one another and a lot of radio traffic, which 
made it very difficult to hear one another. I ju t wanted to keep everyone teady to 
conserve our energy and save air within our BA sets. aving air meant our BA sets 
would last longer in these conditions. 

When we reached the fourth (4th) floor on the stair case we suddenly came into very thick black smoke. It 

was like there was a duvet over your head and I could not see anything, even my hand in front of my face . 

lt was impossible to see exact ly where you were going. The staircase was the same the whole way up so I 

was ab le to make my way up it knowing the layout of it !Tom the first few flights which were not smoke 

logged and using the walls and bannister as a guide when I needed it. I bumped into a few things on the 

way up, some of which I think were people but I could not see anyone or exactly what it was that I 

bumped into. The stairwell was very noisy, I could hear bangs and pops of what I think might have been 

doors opening and closing. I could also hear people screaming and shouting. 

I lost track of exactly what floor we were on as we were going up but when we got to about the fifteenth 

(15'11
) floor the smoke suddenly cleared. lt was li ke a light had just been switched on. I could see clearly 

again and there was no smoke at all . I thought we must be climbing up the stairs faster than the smoke 

was rising. I could now see the floor numbers again so me and Luke decided to run the last few flights of 

stairs up to the twentieth (20'11
) floor. We did not see anyone on the stairs above the fifteenth (15'11

) floor 

Q. At that tage, why did you decide not to carry on up the 

tower to the 23rd floor? 

A. Becau e obviously there was no fire lift there's only 

one stairca e, and that's our egress that's our only 

' ay up and down the stair , so I just wanted to tie in 

with that crew and see wbat they were doing. Because, 

like, you know, being where we were, we were just 

getting battered by bot, black smoke. 

Q. If I can top you there wa there any differenc the 

conditions between the 2 1 t and the 22nd floor in the 

taitwell? 

A. No, the stairwell didn't really change at all. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Roberts, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, pl28 
Hot and dark 
from Level 11 , 
Approx. 02:15 

Bettinson, 
Transcript 19 
July 2018, p223 
Levels 9 down 
to 3'd heavily 
smoke logged 
Approx. 02:15 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

A. Not that I'm aware of. Again, it was sort of you were 

o involved with bringing the casualty down how much 

air you had, you were just trying to get out, basically. 

As you got lower and lower, the conditions were getting 

worse and worse, it ·was getting hotter and darker from 

around floor 10 11, and then around--

ow, arising out of that, were the conditions you 

encountered on the stairwell on each of the floors a 

you descended down the tower? 

A. Yeah, o it never -like it was black, thick smoke 

until about maybe the third or fourth floor. That was 

it. That was what it was. It had gone the-- the whole 

thing had gone. It was thick black smoke. 

Q. Arc you able to describe the temperature a you 

descended from the ninth floor down to the bridgehead? 

A. It was just hot and it felt like it was getting hotter 

as you went down. 
Batcheldor from the Bridge Head on the 2nd floor. There was just one set of stairs. I was struck up on how narrow 

(MET00007511) the tairs were. From the 4th floor upwards it was moky. I think I remember seeing lighting in the 

Level 4 stairwell, but I cannot be certain. Most of the doors lead ing on to the stairwell were closed otherwise it 

Approx. 02:18 would have been much more smoky. 

Murphy, Q. Had smoke conditions in the tairwcll deteriorated mce 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, you'd gone up? 

p51 A. o, it was still thick, acrid smoke. We couldn 't see 
From Level14 
down our hands in front of our face. 
Approx. 02:19 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Roberts, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, pl30 
Light smoke 
Levels 10 to 20 
Approx. 02 :20 

O'Donoghue, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p21 
Levels 3 upward 
to Level11 
Approx. 02 :21 

O'Donoghue, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p25 
Lights failed 
above Level 5/6 
Approx. 02 :21 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

an you de cri be, first fall , coming down from the 

20th to the 15th floor what the moke conditions were 

like on those five floors? 

A. It was pretty clear. There wasn't really much of 

a change. Visibility was good down them floors. You 

could see your crew in front of you. I was carrying the 

casualty at the head end, so I had her arms, Firefighter 

Gillam had the legs and I could see irefighter Gillam 

and whoever was in front of him quite clearly. 

Q. And what wa the po ition between the 15th and 1Oth 

floors in terms of smoke? 

A. Again, exactly the same. 

Fir t of all, can you remember, what colour was the 

smoke you encountered at that stage? 

A. As we started up on, shall we say, the first floor, it 

was grey and wispy and progressively got darker. 

On some of the floors as we progressed up, the 

emergency lighting wasn't working, and that made the 

area even darker. But it was as iJ" it was -- we had 

moments of-- not clarity, but grey smoke. That was on 

the lower floors. As we got up, it was more 

consistently dark black and thicker. 

Q. Looking at the smoke condition you encountered a you 

went up from the bridgehead to the third floor--

A. Yes. 

Page 21 

Q. -- that part of your journey wa the smoke wi py grey 

and then darkening, how would you describe it? 

A. Wispy grey. 

Q. Can you remember whether any of the lighting in the 

tairwell above the sixth floor was working or not? 

Q. 

o my recoUection, it wa not working above the i th. 

an you remember on which floor the lighting topped 

working? 

A. I'd say tbe fifth or sixth. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Femandes 
(MET00008329 
2) 
From Level 20 
to Level3 
Approx. 02 :25 

Herrera, 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, 
pl06 
From Level 2 to 
Levell4 
Approx. 02 :26 

Orchard, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
p51 
Up to Level14 
Approx. 02 :27 

Foster, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
pll6 
Level 18 down 
to at least Level 
12 
Approx. 02 :27 

Law son, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
p155 
Stair air very 
smoky 
Approx. 02 :27 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

"As we started to descend the staircase it was definitely hotter than 
when we had climbed up. 

As we descended the child stopped screaming and was no longer 
throwing her arms and legs around, she became unresponsive in my 
arm. I was unable to give first aid to the child as I could not stop on 
the stairs due to the smoke, I was in BA gear and therefore unable to 
deliver any rescue breaths to the girl. 

The lights started to come on at around the 3rd floor and visibility 
improved. 

I could see that the child was unconscious and frothing at the mouth " 
14th floor it elf. 

Was there a difference between the moke condition 

you encountered on the 14th floor itself compared to the 

stairwell? 

A. o, it was the same from the bridgehead to the 

14th floor, complete black, thick moke. 

Is it fair to say that as you went up from the 

bridgehead to the 14th floor, visibility was difficult? 

A. Yes, definitely. 

Q. What colour was the smoke? 

A. It was just dense smoke. I don't reca iJ what colour. 

Q. You don't recall it being white, changing to black or 

anything like that a you went up? 

A. No. 

Q. The conditions on the way down, I think you describe 

visibility as bad and that you were weeping the floor 

and leaning on your back foot to avoid falling. Is that 

a fair summary? 

A. It is, yes. 

Q. Can you rememb r what condition the ea ualties were in? 

For example were ome being brought down una isted? 

A. ot that I've seen. The ones that were coming down at 

that point were unconscious. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
O'Donoghue, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p31 
Levelll 
Approx. 02:30 

Juggins, 
Transcript 11 
September 2018, 
p68 
Heavy smoke 
from 7'h floor 
upward 
Approx. 02:31 
Smith 
(IWS0000077 1) 
From Levell2 
Approx. 02:41 

Neda 
(IWS00000886) 
From Level 23 
Approx. 02:41 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

Wa it obviou ly hotter in or about the 11th floor 

than it had been below the I I th floor? 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Wa the smoke denser or much the same? 

A. It was denser. 
Q. Again what colour was the moke? 

Page 31 

A. Black. 

Q. You ay when you got to the 7th floor you lo t the light 

and visibility and you de cribe it a zero per cent. Is 

that a fair summary of what you encountered? 

A. Yes, complete p itch black. 

67. The) told us to mo\t! down the sw ircase as quic" <b \\t.: cuuld . \\'hen ~\C 

pu~hcd th ' tairca.c door opt!n it was roasting. it \.\as"') hnr. Y1•U could not 

see an:th111g on the st:1 irs: )0ll cuuld hear crying and s ITaming. The; also 

55. I could not see anything in the stairwell. It was complete black and thick with chocking 

smoke. My mum wanted to turn back and go ro find my dad. I knew if we went back we 

61. We were making our way down the stairs as fast as we could and we got to a point where 

we just could not breathe anymore. As we got about halfway down the Tower. I remember 

walking past a floor where I had seen an open landing door. I do not know which floor this 

was on. but because we could not breathe where we had gotten to, on the stairwell, we went 

back up one staircase to try and find some air. 

62. As we went onto the landing/corridor of that floor. I saw a small air pocket and I started to 

try and get my breath back. I do not know how long we stayed there. The air was still full of 

smoke. bur it was not as thick. In this pocket of better air. I was able to catch my breath 

63 . As we were going down. I could hear the distinctive sotmd of venting from breathing masks. 

I could also hear the sound of breaths and oxygen being drawn into those masks. I could not 

see anything as it was still pitch black. I just held my hand out to try and feel and as soon as 

I felt some.thing. I realised it was a ftre fighter. I grabbed and pulled him towards me and 

told him that I was with my mum and that we had come down from the 23 rd floor. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Upton 
(MET00007524) 
From Level 4 to 
Level21 
Approx. 02:45 

Upton, 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, 
pl54 
FromLevel4 
Approx. 02:45 
Ho are 
(MET00008027) 
From Level 3 to 
Levell2 
Approx. 02:56 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

By the fourt h tloor we couldn' t see anyt hing. 1 thi nk there was emergency lighting at this point and we 

also had our torches on, but the density of the smoke was causing visibi lity loss. You couldn' t see a thing. 

The smoke was lighter on the third tloor, but got denser and darker as we went up. lt was coming from 

everywhere- there wasn ' t a single corner that was clear and there was no obvious source, such as an open 

doorway. 

I was leading the way to start with and Tom was behind me. lt became clear very soon that we didn' t 

have any tloor numbers to work from. it was a big problem. We didn' t have a clue how far up the 

bu il ding we were, not least because I did n' t know what tloor we had started from on account of the 

design of the bui lding and the lobby areas. Also, there were doorways off the landings but it wasn' t clear 

where they went to. 

A. Yeah, so firstly, visibility past the 4th floor was 

nonexistent. And then, yeah, I think what a lot of 

"I remember the condition from the third to the four and fifth 
staircases being the same as we had encountered on the lower floor, 
very little or no smoke. There was more debris now on the stairs, 
causalities being aided down by firefighters so we had to make way for 
them to pass . 
... 

As we approached floor 6th the smoke was now obvious and reducing 
my visibility. I could see my hands if pulled towards my face, make out 
the railings, and see maybe 3 steps ahead, but the general visibility 
was now impeded with the smoke albeit not thick smoke . 
... 

The higher we got the visibility deteriorated and by the 7th floor the 
conditions changed dramatically. It was thick heavy smoke log and I 
could not see much at all. At this point my adrenalin was going up, it 
was hotter and I could not readily tell what floor I was on, it was pitch 
black with smoke. Not only was the smoke density increasing but so 
was the heat. I remember the 5th floor being clear but by floor 7 we 
could see very little or nothing at all. I had to clean out my visor to 
make out the floor number . 
... 

By floor 9, I had to wipe soot off of the walls to see what number of 
floor we were on. 
... 

All through my way from the Bridge Head to the 9th floor I was not 
paying attention to the doors because I was just heading from one 
staircase to the next and not going into the lobby area so I could not 
tell if the lobby doors were closed or opened. For this reason, I cannot 
say why the drastic change in smoke density on the upper floors 
compared to the first six flights of staircase. I began not to count what 
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REPORT OF DR BARBARA LANE 

SPECIALIST FIELD FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

ON BEHALF OF: GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Reference Content- Stair conditions 
Level affected 
at time 

Ho are, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
p196 
Smoke starting 
at Level 5/6. 
Matches witness 
statement 
Approx. 02:56 
Whamsby, 
p 191 , Transcript 
6 September 
2018, 
Heavy Smoke 
starts at Level 6 
Approx. 03:04 

floor we were on I just wanted to get to the 12th. 

The staircases are enclosed with no windows for natural light which is 
why I believed the electricity was on as the lower floors were lit. Due 
to the thick smoke it was not evident if the electricity was still on above 
the 7th floor up as the smoke was so thick even if the light was on it did 
not make any difference. 

The conditions on the 9th, 10th and 11th floors were the same, no 
visibility, increased heat, thick smoke, again whether the lights were 
on or off it would not have made any difference. " 

"At this point it was boiling hot, the staircase was getting hotter 
because people were coming through from the lobby doors letting the 
heat onto the staircase. The visibility was very low and you could not 
see the people coming down, you just hear them. 

Each floor was the same but cooled down slightly " 

A. I think it was fine up to about floor 5 or 6 and then it 

just started deteriorating. 

Q. an you remember whether the stairwell is illuminated by 

a light? 

A. I don't remember, but it mu t have been otherwise we 

wouldn't have been able to sec an thing. 

I remember going onto the stairwell, reasonably clean 

air untiJ possibly the 6tb floor maybe -- almost 

definitely the 6th floor because at that point I was 

counting quite intently. There was lots of hose, a few 

lines of charged hose but some empty hose rolled up, and 

lots of crews coming down. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Codd, Transcript 
10 September 
2018, p82 
Smoke from 
Level 6 to Level 
12 
Intense heat 
reported 
Approx. 03:05 

Yahya 
(IWS00000498) 
From Level 18 
down 
Approx. 03 :18 

Li 
(IWS0000515) 
From Level 22 
down 
Approx. 03 :21 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

Q. Okay. 

ow, in terms of your deployment to the 22nd floor 

itself, dealing fir t with conditions and the ituation 

on the stairwell you ay tn your tatement there wa 

moke from the 6th Door onward · i that light? 

A. Yest that's correct. 

Q. How would you de ctibe that moke? 

A. Very thick, black smoke. 

Q. You lost visibility and you didn't realise for some time 

that Mr Jo eph wasn't with you; is that right? 

A. I lost him on one of the floors. We saw a firefighter 

coming down with casualtiest and I swear I do believe 

that I lo t him . 

. . . (p86) 

"It was freaky. I didn't take my et off it \Va 

like wh n you go d p di ing and it goe r :ally qui t. 

That' what the building was like a ort of ilence 

I c uld hear crackling every now and then and the heat 

wa so intcn c. T could hear banging on the doors. Tt 

i. Conditions in the stairwell were even worse than in the lobby. There was intense 

heat that seemed to increase as we descended, and the smoke was so thick that we 

couldn't see. I wasn't running as I was pregnant and carrying-but we were 

going as fast as we could. 

93 The sta1r well door was undamaged and shut behmd us by itself 

94. In the staircase, once I grabbed the handra1ll made sure she grabbed 1t and was on track 

95 In the sta1rwell the smoke was about the same, you could JUSt see the light whenever you 

turned a corner, each floor had a light at the same place You couldn't see anything at all We 

could only grab the ra1l and follow the ra1l to go down The ra1l was normal temperature I don't 

remember feeling any heat at all throughout the n1ght 

102 As soon as I got to the 2nd or 3'd floor I could start to breath lig,i:ltly. There was a sudden 

change and the smoke was the same consistently through the stair well before then My whole 

body JUSt felt relief Before th1s pomt I was tak1ng short gasps from the wet towel The water 

helped release the pain, it felt like I was breathing m the water from the fabnc, not breathing a1r 

Without the wet towel you wouldn't be able to breath at all lt was mcred1bly painful to breathe 
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SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Reference 
Level affected 
at time 
Mac it 
(IWS00000904) 
From Levell6 
Approx. 03:4 7 

Wood, 
Transcript 12 
September 2018, 
p8 
Stairs up to 4th 
from Ground 
floor bridgehead 
Approx. 03:47 

Gomes 
(IWS00000622) 
Level 21 down 
to Level 7 
Approx. 03:55 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Stair conditions 

77 1 he 111oke on the stairwell wa~ hot and thick. I ft:! h likt' I cou ldn' t br~a the. I am not 

nhle to de .cribe how the smoke lasted hut all I can '>.1) i~ that it was diflicuh to 

breutht:! because of hm' thick tht:! smoke was. 1 he ld onto the railings of the sta11well. 

Scncr \\cl~ \\alk ing in front of me. I don·t rcJncmbcr anyon~ d L' "alking down tht' 

sta irs when we were but you couldn't' see anythmg ~o 11 i-, possible tht.:re were pcnpk 

also wa lkin • do'' n. 

S. it \\3:, ditfic 11 h 10 wa lk dm\11 the tait~ hecnuse )11 11 ccnddn "t ,c.;· til L· sll:ps. I \\as 

·ounting thl' number or . teps ~0 I knew \\hen \\C f:!lll to t:.l<:h fl oor. Sener kept on 

te lling me.: to W i ne on ami told mt.: to keep lol!owing him 

Q. Can you describe for us the condition you encountered 

a you left the bridgehead and tarted to make yom way 

up to the 4th floor? 

A. Yeah, it was smoky. 

Q. an you de cribe for u the den ity? How thick wa the 

moke? 

A. It got thicker as we went through onto the floor. 

Q. What colour was it? 

A. Like black. 

120. The stairwell was quiet, there was no noise and it was very hot . I would describe it as like 

the heat that comes out of an oven and blasts you in the face . It was a dry and intense heat 

and the hand rail was hot to the touch, but not hot enough to bum me. The smoke was 

thick, and I could not see where I was going or where I was stepping until I got to the 6ih 

or 7th floor, only on these floors was I able to see again. Prior to this it was pure darkness, 

as the stairwell was completely filled with smoke . I recall that on the journey down fonn 

our floor that I was shouting and encouraging the girls, pushing them to keep going down. 

I fe lt that if we stopped then we would not. get our aliYe. 
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REPORT OF DR BARBARA LANE 

SPECIALIST FIELD FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

ON BEHALF OF: GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Reference Content- Stair conditions 
Level affected 
at time 
Cook, Transcript 
24 July 2018, 
p230 
Level 5 at 04:04 

Goulboume 
(MET00010759) 
Stair too hot at 
Levell3 to 
pennit passage 
beyond 
c.f. to Cook and 
Gallagher entry 
Approx. 04:04 

I hould ay-- at page l , ifl canju t g back to 

that with you y u d ribe going up to th fifth floor 

in the econd paragraph. 

Mm. 

Q. And you . ay: 
11 ondition were hot and fire eemed apparent all 

ar und. We saw anoth r er w 1 belie e and it wa cl ar 

that this fl or had been cleared." 

m. 

Q. vVha wer th onditi n in th t mv lllik do you 

rem mber. 

Conditions were poor. They'd really, really 

degenerated. Really degenerated. nd very very 

quickly. 

On the stainvell, it's bard to tell, because once 

you're wearing BA or respiratory protective equipment, 

you have ot ome protection. Would it have been 

respirable? I'm not sure. I'm genuinely not sure. 

"The SDBA crews were covering floors 5-9 and the EDBA crews were 
pushing on up to floors 9,10 and 11. At some point we managed to get 
hoses attached to the risers on floor 9 and so the EDBA crews were 
firefighting on those floors. In addition, we had managed to get a 
further two hoses into the building and up the stairwell via a 
lightweight pump at the front and a pump at the back. The fire on floor 
11 was fierce, horrific. 

We received FSG 's stating that there were 10 people in one flat on the 
16th and 11 people in one flat on the 18th floors. I wanted to get up 
there to get them out so I asked a trusted officer to go up as far as he 
could and report back. The 7th and 8th floors, all flats were on fire. 
The 9th and 10th floor lobbies were on fire. The whole ofeh(sic) 11th 
floor was on fire. He felt we could get as far as the 12/13th floor but 
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Reference Content- Stair conditions 
Level affected 
at time 

Codd, Transcript 
10 September 
2018,p89 
Levell2 
Approx. 05:30 

Gillman, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p88 
Smokey in the 
stair from 
Ground up to 
Levell2 
Approx. 06:00 
(based on 
statement. No 
clear telemetry) 

after that you could go up but you wouldn 't be coming back. I had to 
accept this was the case. 

During this time, I was informed there was still one FSG on the 11th 
floor and one FSG on the 1Oth floor. Oriental man on the 11th, blind 
man on the lOth, who managed to get them out and I believe they were 
the last two to be rescued." 

Q. Okay. 

If I could ask you to hUll to page 9 of your witness 

statement, and it's 12 line down. You say thi : 

"On the 22nd fl or there wa a fami ly of five that 

I ne er got to. T didn't know until about a week later, 

the BBC put Grenfell Tower up and put face to the 

floors I spoke with Lou about it. I don't think 

I could have got up th re, the vi or on my helmet i all 

blistered and I didn't even have it down so it show the 

heat in there." 

Q. A you went up from the bridgehead, up the tower can you 

de cribe conditions in the tairwell as you went from 

the third floor up? 

A. I 'd ay smoky the entire wa . 

Q. And how thick was that smoke? 

A. 1 can't rcaUy remember that. 

Q. Can you remember its colour? 

A. I can remember the smoke when we opened the doors to the 

haUways, but not so much in the -- you could cc the 

crews, the other crews, the outlines of the other crews. 

N3 Conditions in the lobbies 

N3.1.1 

N3.1.2 

Table N.2 below records specific extracts from resident witness statements 
and the examination transcripts from fire fighters. The table also includes the 
specific fire fighter witness statement evidence that I have relied upon in my 
preliminary phase 1 report. Each item of evidence has been assigned an 
Approximate time, a specific location and placed in chronological order. 

I have identified a discrepancy in timing between the witness statement of 
Smith (IWS00000771 ), who states that the Level 12lobby was clear before 
Approximately 01:26, and the transcript of Fire Fighter O'Beime, who 
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identified smoke logging of the Level 12lobby by Approximately 01:23. This 
is not a significant discrepancy in terms of timing. 

N3.1.3 I will update this evidence when the Residents have completed their oral 
evidence to the Inquiry. 

Table N.2: Evidence of lobby conditions 

Transcript 
reference 
Badillo, 
Transcript 29 
June 2018, p81 
Level 4 lobby 
Approx. 01:05 
Alves 
(IWS00000538) 
Level 13 lobby 
Approx. 01:08 

O'Hanlon, 
Transcript 3 July 
2018,p89 
Level 4 lobby 
Approx. 01:11 

Zada 
(IWS00000989) 
Level 8 lobby 
Approx. 01:11 

Hippel, 
Transcript 19 
July 2018, p25 
Level 4 lobby 
starting to fill 
with smoke from 
flat 16 
Approx. 01 :17 

Content- Lobby conditions 

were the condition like in the lobby the air 

condition ? 

A. They were clear. There was a slight smell of a tire. 

12. Tiago and . had gone ahead of me and after waking people up in the other flat s I 

started walking down the stairs. As I walked down I didn ' t hear any fire alam1 or see 

any smoke. The lobby area was clear from smoke. The only thing I heard was the 

extraction fan. lt is not unusual to hear it making a noise and it worked as a 

ventilation system. At the time, it was making a noise. I don' t know if it was working 

properly but there was noise. As before it was light, there was no smoke and no smell. 

Q. "We opened the door in the lobby and it wa moky." 

What wa the moke like? How , moky v a it? 

. 1 don't believe it wa particularly moky but there was 

smoke present . 

. . . (additional info from p94) 
A. I couldn't tell you why, but I don't remember the lobby 

being heavily smoke-logged. 

I .cavi nl! the nat 

I went out in to th.: landi nf( and th.:r.: was no smoke. I w.:nt t oward~ the stair . 

and as ~oon a · I op~:nc.:d the door to the stairs I could smell mukc <md I wuld 

feel warmth. but thi co uld be ju t because it was ummer. I could dc linitcly 

smd l smol.e. 

You I think recall ome moke coming from the door 

to flat 16 into the lobby. Can you de cribe the moke 

Page 25 

foru ? 

A. lt wasn't a lot, ju t a little bit of black smoke. 

othing to concern us to be in the lobby. 
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Transcript 
reference 
Stem, Transcript 
19 July 2018, 
pl33 
Level 4 lobby 
Approx. 01:18 

O'Beime, 
Transcript 2 July 
2018, p163 
Level 5 lobby 
Approx. 01:18 
Chebiouni 
(IWS00000945) 
Level 9 lobby 
starting to 
experience 
smoke 
Approx. 01:18 

Stem, Transcript 
19 July 2018, 
pl38 
5'h floor lobby 
Approx. 01 :20 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

When you got to the fourth-floor lobby, what were 

the conditions like there? 

A. There was some smoke visible. 

Q. Do you remember eeing where the smoke was coming from? 

A. From the fire flat on the fourth floor. 

Q. Do you remember where the fu t two BA crews were at 

that stage? 

A. They were in the fire flat. 

Q. Wa the door open or clo ed? 

A. lt wa ajar, yeah. It was open because of the hoses. 

Q. Can you describe the moke in the lobby at that stage? 

A. It was black smoke at ceiling level. 

Q. At cei ling level? 

Q. Was there any smoke in the fifth-floor lobby once you 

left the stairwell? 

A. No. 

30. I walked slowly as I left the flat. I didn't think the 1ire was that serious. I thought 

everything would be okay. I remember seeing light grey smoke on the 9111 floor landing, 

like cigarette smoke. Apart from that, everything looked normal. The front doors of our 

neighbours were all closed. I did not see anyone else leaving their flat I can't recall 

the landing being unusually hot. 

Q. Then you say in the second line in that paragraph: 
11 

• • • slight smoke coming from the door we made our 

way straight to the door in relation to above the fire 

flat on the 4th floor .. . 11 

So that would be flat 26, if the flat below was 16. 

A. If that's the number, yes. 

Q. Can you de cribe the moke that was coming out? 

A. It was thick black smoke just slowly coming out the 

door. 

Q. Black moke? 

A. Yeah -- well, yeah it was staining the door. 
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Transcript 
reference 
Hippel, 
Transcript 19 
July 2018, p32 
Level 5 lobby 
starting to fill 
with smoke from 
flat 26 
Approx. 01 :20 

Stem, Transcript 
19 July 2018, 
p144 
6'h floor 
Approx. 01 :20 

O'Beime, 
Transcript 2 July 
2018,p173 
Level6 
Approx. 01 :20 
by cross 
reference to 
Hippel transcript 

Chebiouni 
(IWS00000945) 
Level 6 lobby 
fully smoke 
logged 
Approx. 01 :20 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

Q. Right. Okay. 

\\'hen you get to th ftfth floor, you ay there was 

ome smoke. ould you describe that smoke for u ? 

A. At the fifth? Again, it was quite white and it was 

coming out from around- the door was shut and it was 

coming out from around the door frames. There wasn't 

a lot ofsmoke. It was-- yeah, quite grey. But you 

could see it seeping out. 

Q. Did you notice -.; hen you arrived at the fifth floor any 

particular change in temperatur ? 

A. No. 

Q. What about vi ibility in the fifth-floor lobby? 

A. Visibility was fine. 

Q. Right. Then you go into, you ay, the ixth-floor 

lobby thi 1 three lines up from the end of the econd 

paragraph on page 9: 

"The 6th flo r lobby wa quite heavy moke logged. 

It wa low it wa enough for me to make a safe approach 

to the flat the make layer was probably just above 

[redacted] 5'7'' o T could ee it was quite thick 

smoke." 

Did that concern you? 

A. Yes. 

But just in terms of the conditions in the 

ixth-floor lobby, Mr O'Beirne, you ay it was a little 

bit smoky- could you describe that smoke for us, fir t 

of all? 

A. You could see across the lobby. It was darkish, 

I guess in colour, not very light white smoke, so it 

would've been a darker grey, I guess. But visibility 

was okay. 

32. Around the ~~~~ of j h ftoor, I saw a _black guy with his daughter, I think he Is from 

Somalia or Sudan. He Is a small guy, and was weat1ng glasses. He was carrying his 

daughter, who I would say was around 3 years old. He asked me what had lwppened . . · 

He looked cc;mfused rather then scared. As we spoke, J op·ened tlie do?r onto what I 

.belleve was the ()!h floor landing. When I opened the door, I saw thick, black smoke. lt 

was lmpossipie to :~ee through~d back the d~·or and I was: c~~~used. . . •• 
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Transcript 
reference 
Li 
(IWS00000515) 
Level 22 lobby 
Approx. 01 :20 
Khalloud 
(IWS000004 73) 
Level11 
Approx. 01 :20 

Al-Arasi 
(IWSOOOOOOOS) 
Level13 
Approx. 01 :20 

Kassemdjian 
(IWS00000951) 
Level 17 
Approx. 01 :20 

Ho 
(IWS00000925) 
Level 10 lobby 
Approx. 0120 

Patel 
(IWS00000855) 
Level 8 lobby 
clear 
Approx. 01 :20 

Abell, Transcript 
11 September 
2018,p59 
Level 5 lobby 
Approx. 01 :21 

Abell, Transcript 
11 September 
2018,p64 
Level 5 - entry 
to Flat 26 
Approx. 01 :21 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

42 At that t1me, m the hallway, I would descnbe the smoke as hazy, very hght We could still see 

everyone ok 

40. I closed the front door immediately after opening it. Smoke had a lready come 

in to the flat from when I o p ened the fro nt door, w hi c h set o fT the smoke alann 

in the cOtTido r of my flat. I think it o nl y set off the one smoke alann in the 

corridor but I am not sure. 

18. When we opened the front door to exit we could smell burning again but I could 
not see any smoke. The lighting in the lobby area was fine. I knocked on my 
neighbour's door at Flat 101 to ale·rt them that something may be wrong but got 
no response. I closed and locked my front door. 

29. 'When I ftrst opened the door to the fla t I couldn ' t. ee any smoke but I could me11 i r. 

Vle could hear the vents making a noise. I think that they were smoke vents and they 

were on, making a lot of noise. Rita still remembers that noise especia11y. 

25. When I opened the front door I did not see any smoke on the landing, there was only smoke 

behind me. I did not see any fire. I saw firemen on the landing. I cannot be sure, but I think 

were two or three of them. I think they were male, but I cannot be sure as I could not see them 

properly due to their protective equipment which covered their head. I did not see any other 

people. As we went out of the flat I did not shut the front door, instead leaving it for the firemen 

to deal with. I believe at least one of the firemen spoke to us, a male, but I could not understand 

what he was saying. One of the firemen pushed me towards the stairs. together with my wife. 

1-t On the landing I ou ld tell that -moke wa only coming from our fla t. Once we had 

managed to close the fronl door, there was m smol.. · an) more: 11 wru. no longer a 

prnhlem. 

Q. When you opened the door fi·om the tair into the 

f.lfth-floor lobby, what were the condition like in the 

fifth-floor lobby when you did that? 

A. I remember it being clear in tbcre. 

A. Well, at first, he opened the door and the door closed 

on us by accident traight away, so we had to open the 

door again. T ended up sort of booting the door open 

because 1 couldn't get the halligan bar- I couldn't 

open it again with the halligan bar. The visibility was 

zero; there was thick black smoke coming straight out 

from the moment we kicked the door open. 
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Transcript 
reference 
O'Beime, 
Transcript 2 July 
2018, p187 
Level 7 lobby 
Approx. 01 :21 
Referring to 
CCTV footage 
GF reviewed 
withPW 
(woman with 
cloth over 
mouth, etc) 
O'Beime, 
Transcript 2 July 
2018,p196 
LevelS 
Approx. 01 :22 

O'Beime, 
Transcript 2 July 
2018,p203 
Level9 
Approx. 01 :22 

Mekonnen 
(IWS00000912) 
Light smoke on 
Level 19 landing 
Approx. 01 :22 

O'Beime, 
Transcript 2 July 
2018,p205 
Levels 10 and 
11 
Approx. 01 :23 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

Q. To be fair to you, it's not perhaps the most perfect 

picture, but you thought it was a bit mokicr than this 

picture shows us; is that what you're saying? 

Page 187 

A. Yes, it looks quite clear to me there and I'm sure it 

was a bit smolder than that. 

Q. In the third paragraph there on that page, you say that 

the eighth-floor lobby was heavily smoke-logged, do you 

ee? You say: 

"By this stage there was quite heavy smoke in the 

lift lobby of that floor so 1 came straight out and went 

up to the next floor." 

Do you see that? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You ay as you do, that there was absolutely no smoke 

in the lift lobby on level 9. Did you look to see 

whether there was any smoke or fire in flat 66; in other 

words, the flat on level 9 immediately above all the 

flats you'd een below which were alight? 

A. I didn't approach the door, no. 

16. I came out on to my landing with my daughters and I could see light smoke on the landing. 

My neighbour. Amal, was also on the landing with her relative. We both spoke at the same 

time and said, 'There is a fn·e! ' I told Amal that I knew about the fn·e and that, 'We needed 

to get out .' Amal ran back into her flat . She has a daughter and I presume she went back for 

her. 

Could you de cribe the smoke that you aw in the 

lobby on the 1Oth floor? 

A. It's obviou ly difficult to remember, but all I remember 

is each door 1 opened, the smoke was very heavy. So 

that would've been including floor 10 and 11. 
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Transcript 
reference 
O'Beime, 
Transcript 3 July 
2018, p7 (2nd 
day) 
Level12 
Approx. 01 :23 

Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018, pll5 
Level 5 lobby 
largely clear, 
just smoke 
coming out of 
Flat 26 
Approx. 01 :25 
Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018, pll8 
Level 6 lobby 
Approx. 01 :25 

Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018,p122 
Level 6 lobby 
Approx. 01 :25 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

Q. Then you say in the next paragraph: 

"I quickly looked into the lobby of the floor that 

she had come from and I could see that there wa, thick 

black moke trom floor to ceiling." 

an you remember what vi ibility through that moke 

wa like? 

A. Absolutely zero. 

Q. In the lobby? 

A. Clear, pretty clear. There was a little bit of smoke 

coming out the gentleman's flat, maybe maybe smoke in 

the area or maybe his flat~ but enough for them to want 

Q. Clear. And did you go into the lobby on the ixth? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What were the condition li k ther , do you rem mb r? 

A. Clear. othing- not extraordinarily smoky, but people 

tarted coming out. I think it wa from the flat area 

directly above the kitchen of the fourth, the fifth and 

the sixth. I think they came out. 

Q. Can you describe for us what physical condition they 

were in? 

A. Not distressed. No one suffering the effects of smoke 

inhalation. 

Q. And the conditions in the lobby on the ixth floor a 

you left? 

A. Clear. 

Q. Still clear? 

A. Clear. 
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Transcript 
reference 
Dorgu 
(MET00008603 
7) 
Level 6 lobby 
Approx. 01 :25 

Fletcher 
(IWS00000913) 
Level16 lobby 
Approx. 01 :25 

Yahya 
(IWS00000498) 
Level 18 lobby 
clear 
Approx. 01 :25 
(Shahid Ahmed 
exits at 01:31) 

Archer 
(MET0000800 1) 
Level 6 lobby 
Approx. 01 :25 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

"I think it was Justin that said to me that a woman was complaining of 
fire on the seventh floor. I said to him smoke or fire as smoke can 
travel and said definitely fire. 

The pram got left behind but I don 't think anybody died on the sixth 
floor but that's because they got out early. I had a feeling that things 
were getting bad. I knew it wasn't good. It was smoky in the flat but 
just wisps in the lobby. Not too dark and no BA at this point. I was 
going up and down. It seemed like everyone was getting out the four or 
five flats so I went downstairs. " 

20. My wife ran to the front door with me behind her and she opened the front door. As she 

opened the front door thick black smoke rushed in from the hallway/landing outside of the 

flat.. The smoke in the landing area covered the whole area from the floor to the ceiling. It 

was thick black smoke and you could not see anything. EYen if you held up your hand in 

front of your face you couldn' t see it as it was so black and thick. I an1 6 ft tall and the thick 

black smoke was above my head. I could not see any lights in the hallway; they must have 

been out or at best prevented from giving out light by the thickness of the smoke . Hime 

slammed the door shut. 

20. A short time later my neighbour in Flat 156, Shah, chair of leaseholder association, 

knocked on our door, and told me that he and his wife were leaving and that I should 

take the children and get out too. At th is point the lights on the 18th floor landing were 

still on and I couldn't see any smoke in lobby. There still wasn't any smoke in my flat. 

"Myself and Tom then forced it open and wedged our bodies into the 
entrance so it wouldn't close back again. The windows must have been 
open to have made this happen. As soon as we wedged the door open 
thick black smoke came out, and filled the lobby area, the visibility was 
bad, I couldn't see the stairwell door. 
The hose on the 6th floor came .from the outlet on the fifth floor, not the 
sixth. This was a problem because the stairwell filled with smoke .from 
the sixth floor because the hose prevented the door to the stairwell 
closing 

Me and Tom made our way back down the stairwell. I don't know how 
long I was in there for, the BA board would probably tell you that 
information, but I don 't know myself At this point residents were 
coming down the stairwell, and at this time the stairwell was filling up 
with smoke." 
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Transcript Content- Lobby conditions 
reference 
Jafari 

(IWS00000683) 19. 1 quick ly left the fla t after I did thi s and I ran into the lift area and my fa ther was there 
Level 11 lobby 
Approx. 01 :27 before me. There was no smoke there. Our neighbour Natasha who lived in flat 82 

Smith 
(IWS00000771) 
Level 12 lobby 
clear 
Before 
01 :23/01 :26 

Badillo, 
Transcript 29 
June 2018, p120 
Level15 
Approx. 01 :27 

Gomes 
(IWS00000622) 
Level 21 lobby 
starting to fill 
Approx. 01:30 

Hippel, 
Transcript 19 
July 2018, p43 
Level 6 lobby 
full of black 
smoke 
Approx. 01:30 
Hippel, 
Transcript 19 
July 2018, p71 
Smoke exiting 
Level16 lobby 
Approx. 01:30 

was stand ing in the lobby. I told her there was a fire in our fla t, and she came into our 

conidor and saw the fl ames. She went back in to her fla t for some reason. Natasha 

This statement indicates that the Level 12lobby is clear of smoke 
before 01:26. However, it has not been possible to attribute a specific , 
time to this observation. 

O'Beime reports Level12 lobby to be smoke logged by 01:23. 
Therefore, by reference to O'Beime's evidence it is possible this 
observation was made prior to 01 :23. 

Q. Ye . 

You ay in your statement that the lift you having 

got into it, stopped at the 15th floor. Is that right? 

T hat's correct. 

Q. Wbat happened next after it stopped? 

A. T he doors opened and a big rush of black smoke filled 

the lift. 

82. When Hele11, ~ and Simba came into our flat through our front door, I could see 

smoke on our landing. It was black smoke and it. was quite close to the ceiling at that point 

you could see through it. This was around about I :25/1:30 am. Some of the smoke from 

the landing came into our flat whilst our front door was open to allow Helen and r.-
A. Purely at that point the colour and the density of the 

smoke on the sb..ih floor. 

. Pretty much. When I got up to the 16th floor I may 

well have been the fir t up there, because I don't 

remember Jamal being up there. o when I got up to 

there, there was a teenager, maybe 15, 17, crouched in 

the doorway, propping the door open. There was smoke 

coming out. I don't remember now him telling me that 

there was someone in there, but he may weU have told me 

there was omeone in there. 
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Transcript 
reference 
Hippel, 
Transcript 19 
July 2018, p84 
Level1 6 lobby 
conditions 
Approx. 01:30 

Hippel, 
Transcript 19 
July 2018, p94 
Level1 6 
evidence of no 
door closer 
Approx. 01:30 

Stem, Transcript 
19 July 201 8, 
p165 
Between Level 6 
and Level15 
Approx. 01:30 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

What about temp ratur in the lobby do you 

remember? 

A. In the lobby, the temperature was fine. 

Q. Did you , ee any fi re? 

A. No. 

Q. What colour wa the smoke? 

A. Black. 

Q. And did you see a neutral plane? 

A. No, a far as I was aware it wa down to the floor. 

A. There was a gap open. T can't-- there was definitely 

a gap there. Whether it was fully open or half open, 

I can't remember. It wasn't pulled to, so there was 

a small gap. lt wa pretty much open. 

Q. Right. Did you ha e any thoughts about what that meant 

in terms of whether the door closer was working properly 

or not? 

A. Well, yeah, it was open, yeah, so there was no door 

closer on it yeah. 

Q. Okay. 

Did you open the door to the lobbie on your way up 

to check the condition in the lobbie ? 

A. I remember I had to try and -because it was quite hard 

to work out what floor we were on as there was no clear 

indication on the stairwell so I would periodicaJJy 

check the lobbies just to see if I could see the floor 

number near where the lifts were. 

Q. Now-

A. Where I did check, none of the lobbies were 

smoke-logged. 
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Transcript 
reference 
Stem, Transcript 
19 July 2018, 
p171 
Level16 lobby 
smoke filled but 
not hot 
Approx. 01:30 

Liao 
(IWS00000505) 
Level 22 lobby 
Approx. 01:30 
O'Hanlon, 
Transcript 3 July 
2018, p119 
4'h floor lobby 
Approx. 01:35 

Doulova 
(IWS00000834) 
Level 20 lobby 
Approx. 01:35 

Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018, p152 
Level 8 lobby 
(accessed by lift) 
Approx. 01:37 
(lift times tamp) 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

Q. Okay. 

Having een the smoke floor to ceiling 1 think you 

say, did that prompt any thoughts in your mind about 

fire spread, about what had happened with the fire? 

A. It shocked me. We're 12 floors above the fire floor, 

witb the lobby being smoke-logged at that density, at 

Page 171 

that speed, I couldn't rationalise it. 1t made no sense 

to me. You would expect those kind of conditions to 

be-- the thick black smoke to kind of present something 

we call backdraft condition , where the compartment is 

oxygen deprived so the smoke gets really thick. And it 

should be re.ally bot· it\ asn't bot, it was just 

extremely thick smoke. So, yes, it did concern me. 

26. There was no smoke inside the landing area at that time. There was no smoke In the stairwell 

at that time. 

Q. On your way down from the fourth floor to the second 

noor, where the bridgehead was, do you remember what 

the conditions were like, the air condi tions? 

A. No. I don't think the lobby on tbe fourth floor was 

Page 119 

that smoke-logged. I don't believe it being heavily 

smoke-logged. 

6 . I put the wet t wcl O\er m} mouth a nd nlhC and \\Cnl to the front door to o ' 11 it I 

H?ry qui kly clo ·cd it again ill the landi ng \Vas full of thi k, bla k smoke. I could not 

cc anything. I could not q itc comprehend what 11a~ happening at tir t. 

Q. Right. So eighth noor, the door open, they don't 

clo e again. What were the condition like on the 

eighth floor in the lobby? 

A. Smoky. Because we had to leaYe the lift because it was 

obviously filling with smoke. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
Badillo, 
Transcript 29 
June 2018, p147 
LevelS 
Approx. 01:37 
(lift times tamp) 

Smith 
(IWS00000771) 
Level 12 lobby 
smoke logged 
Approx. 01:38 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

Q. Okay. 

On your way up from the bridgehead to the 20th 

floor you describe how the lift opened at the eighth 

Page 147 

floor. Do you remember that? 

A. Ye. 

Q. an you describe for u what happened? 

A. Sort of the same thing that happened on the 15th. The 

lift filled with smoke. I don't know whether it was 

From ' hat I remember, it was fu ll of moke but there was 

still some visibility. I didn't have to search around 

to get out of that lobby. 

Q. What colour wa the make, do you remember? o? Did 

you-- orry. 

A. I'm not sure, I can't remember. But it wa n't as dark 

as when I went up on the 15th. 

-L 1 had a feeltng th:Jt th~ lite fighters would not get to us and that \\ t.: wnuld 

lwH· to kave. 1 \\t.:nt to d1~o:d-. that there >\asn't lir..: on uur lloor. I \\cnt to 

the front d 10r ami I looked out and I saw the whole lamlmg v,·a lull ol 

~nHl~e. I l ook~d thmugh thc sp~ hole hut it was ton dark and I cou ldn 't s~~ 

an) thing. So !opened the do )J'. ·1 h~ ~mukl: \Hts thick and much dar~er. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
Abell, Transcript 
11 September 
2018,p78 
Level 5 - Exit 
from Flat 26 
Approx. 01:40 
based on 
Broderick BA 
telemetry 

Gallagher, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
pl3 
LevelS 
Approx. 01:41 
(conflicts with 
Abell) 

Bettinson, 
Transcript 19 
July2018,p217 
Level10 
Approx. 01:42 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

Q. So you come out into the lobby and you say that it had 

deteriorated. Was there any ign of Firefighter Archer 

there? 

A. When I got into the lobby, again, as bad as-­

visibility-wise was as bad as in the flat. 

Q. Right. 

A. At this point, I was basically dragging myself along the 

floor, trying to drag all the hose back out with me that 

I'd taken in. That's not easy. I followed the wall. 

I could hear some commotion some shouting, sort of 

muffled shouting from what I imagine would be the 

fairway and I think I made out omeone shouting, 

"I can't find my BA partner". o that obviously is 

going to be referring to me. 

Q. What were smoke condition like on the 4th and 5th 

floors during that proce s? 

A. At the time- I don't know about the 4th, 1 don't 

believe we entered the 4th, it was quite- it was 

difficult to tell what floors you was on because there 

wasn't any signage. 

Q. Can you remember-- orry I intcnuptcd you . 

. Yeah, but there wasn't smoke-logging at this stage, no. 

A. The conditions in the lobby. You couldn't see in there. 

It just- when you opened the door, it shot out over 

his head and we just both looked at each other and 

thought we're not going in there at the moment; we had 

nothing with us. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
Badillo, 
Transcript 29 
June 2018, pl51 
Level20 
Approx. 01:50 

Dorgu 
(MET00008603 
7) 
Level 20 lobby 
Approx. 01:50 

Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018,pl67 
Level20 
Approx. 01:50 
No sounds of 
smoke alanns, 
even though at 
least one flat 
was full of 
smoke. 
Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018,pl68 
Level20 
Approx. 01:50 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

A. From what I remember, it was getting thicker the further 

we went up the tower. 

Q. What the smoke was? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What about the visibility, was that getting more 

difficult? 

A. On the stai rwell I can remember visibility ' as okay up 

to the 20th, because when I got up to the 20th, I looked 

into the lobby, which' as no visibility at all. So it 

was - it was different. 

"It took maybe fifteen minutes to get up there. It got darker as we got 
higher, it was never ending, I 'm pretty sure the lights weren't on but 
the twentieth was bright light. Chris was in the doorway holding it 
open for me and he was knackered. They went in and searched any 
anyway I stayed outside on the radio. I was trying and trying and 
trying to get on the radio. Chris went into the lobby and it was totally 
clear of smoke. 

The smoke in the flat didn't seem to bad but when you 're in BA in the 
dark it's hard to tell. " 

A. o one came out. here was no indication at all ft·om 

an one that an one el e ' a in di tres . There wa no 

smoke alarm going off, ob iou ly there was no fire alarm 

becau e the took it out but there ' a no one houting, 

Q. an you give u an impression of how unsafe that 

would've been? 

. I know from firefighter ' ho ' ere in there later who 

tried to re cue people, people they brought out were 

uncon cious '\ithin one flight or stairs, two flight of 

fair . So we were - like, w were after a 12-ycar-old 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
Secrett, 
Transcript 5 July 
2018,p89 
Level20 
Approx. 01:50 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

Q. And when you got into the lobby, what wer the air 

condition like in there? 

A. gain, it was smoky. I remember --I've got a distinct 

memory of putting down the length of hose that I was 

carrying and when I put them down, as I stood back up 

I couldn't see them again. o the visibility wa less 

Page 89 

than from my face to the floor. 

Q. Right. How tall are you? 

A. Just under 6 foot. 

Q. Right. And was that mokier or the ame smokine s a 

out in the . tairwell at that .. tage? 

A. It was about the same. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
Secrett, 
Transcript 5 July 
2018,p88 
Level20 
Approx. 01:50 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

Q. In tenns of heat in the lobby area, can you just 

de cribe that for u ? 

A. Y cab, I remember it being bot, but not to the point of 

concern. But also we were cry hot because our fire 

gear or our PPE is not breathable, and like I say, we 

had just sort of come up the best part of20 floors with 

all our equipment. We wa really weating breathing 

hard breathing heavy. 

nd I remember feeling: right, I'm hot now. How 

much of that was the atmosphere and how much of that was 

my own heat that I'm producing, I don't know. But at 

that point I remember thinking: it's a bit warm. But it 

wasn't a concern; fires are hot. It wasn't anything 

that rang alarm bells at that point. 

Q. In term of making a compari on between the radiated 

heat you were feeling there on the 20th floor and the 

radiated heat you would ha e felt on the ixth or eighth 

floor where you exiled the lifi can you make 

a comparison of how much hotter it wa on the 20th? 

A. Yeah it was definitely hotter. The temperature sort of 

continued to rise the whole time we was at the 20th 

floor . When we first got there I remember 

thinking: okay, it's a bit warm - or hot, I should say. 

But like I say, it was nothing of concern. As we'll 

probably get to in a minute a time went on, the 

temperature wa gradually increasing the whole time we 

was up there. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018, p161 
Level 20 lobby 
Approx. 01:50 

Lobby already 
had smoke in it, 
which increased 
rapidly as the 
stair door was 
opened to allow 
access 

Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018,p162 
Level 20 lobby 
Approx. 01:50 

Bettinson, 
Transcript 19 
July2018,p217 
Level9 
Describes when 
conditions 
deteriorated 
significantly 
Approx. 01:50 
(time changed 
from 01:42- to 
be coordinated 
with Gallagher) 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

Q. kay. So are you aying that in the lobby th re wa 

mokc, but it wa clu tcrcd on the ceiling in a band? 

A. Yes further down, but yes. 

Q. How far down did it come? 

At lea t halfway down, but that soon changed. That 

changed quite quickly because Chris was holding the door 

open, so the smoke -- essentially the firefighting 

shaft basically has become a chimney, so it's taking 

smoke from downstairs, heating it and bringing it 

straight up toward us. So as he opened the lift lobby 

door, basically the lobby would've filled with smoke, 

Pag 161 

which it did. 

Q. So you all three went into that flat? 

A. They went in first. My first thought was we need to 

have hose. Obviously we brought hose with us. But the 

lobby became pitch black- like pitch black, so ... 

Q. You went down to the ninth floor, and what did you find 

there? 

A. I located the dry riser and also - so there's a little 

bit of, like, time that's left out of the statement 

Page 217 

where I located the dry ri cr. Crew Manager Gallagbcr 

was no' back up and I turned to him to orab some hose, 

he handed me some hose, and then when I turned around 

again the dry riser had gone. It had gone within 

a matter of seconds. 

Q. So it had been ob cured by the smoke, is what you're 

saying? 

A. Yeah. o you could just about make it out, and then 

within 5 second of grabbing ome ho e and turning back 

round, it wa gone. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
Gallagher, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
p17 
Level 9 lobby 
clear at this time 
Approx. 01:50 

Secrett, 
Transcript 5 July 
2018, p104 
Approx. 01:55 
Describing 
sudden increase 
in temperature in 
Flat 176 and in 
the 201h floor 
lobby after his 
BA alann 
sounded 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

irst of all , you've helped us with conditions on 

the staitwell. You reached the 9th floor, and did you 

go into the lobby of the 9th floor? 

A. Yes. 

Q. an you de cribe the moke condition as you found them 

then? 

A. Well, that was when the conditions got wor c in the 

stairs, the lobby - I think the light of the lobby 

weren't working, and to my recollection there didn't 

seem to be any smoke damage or any smoke in the lobby at 

that time. 

Q. H tter than before? 

Ye. 

In th l bby? 

the whole temperature of that floor piked quite 

quickly. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018,pl75 
Levels 17 down 
to Levell5 . 
Each lobby 
smoke logged 
Approx. 01:55 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

maybe around the 18th floor, 17th, 16th, that the lobby 

areas were heavily moke-logged, so I wa checking the 

doors, pushing the doors open and shouting inside if 

anyone was there, because if they were, there's no way 

they would be able to walk out onto the stairwell and 

they'd probably collapse in the lobby. So even if 

you've known a lobby for 20 years you've lived there, as 

soon as it's pitch black- and I mean completely pitch 

black -- it's irrespirable, so you're coughing, choking, 

it's pretty horrific, as soon a you're not touching 

a wall or a door, you don't know where you are. So then 

you are lost and you won't find your way out of the 

stairwell. 

That's why a lot of people got lost and were found 

in lobbie and tainvell . And even if you do make it 

to the stainvell, the stairwell, which should be 

protected, is now entirely choked with smoke. It's 

irrespirable. So I was concerned people would die a few 

metres from their front door. So I checked on the 

levels down to maybe the 15th. That's when Chris 

Q. When you checked into the lobbie on the way down to the 

Page 175 

15th or so, what did you see? 

A. They were smoky. If you could see, it wouJd be low 

down, so I had to crouch down. You could see in the 

bottom oftbe smoke layer. I shouted, but obviously in 

was very quiet. Really quiet. So no one moving, no one 

speaking, no one - no smoke alarms going off. o the 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
Murphy, 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, 
p41 
Level14 
Approx. 02:00 

Comelius, 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, 
p78 
Level14 
Approx. 02:00 

Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018, p165 
Level20 
Approx. 02:00 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

"We walked to floor 14, our destination tloor. fn 

the lobby of floor 14, it was smoky o we shut the door 

to the stainvell to protect the 14th floor lobby and 

minimise smoke entering it. As we did not know the 

Page 41 

layout of the floor and visibility was poor, I suggested 

toFF CORNELIUS that we do a 'left hand search' a 

Q. From that perspective, how would you a se s, fir t of 

all , the density of the smoke? 

A. It wasn't a safe atmosphere to stay in. There didn't 

appear to be any heat in there. It didn't appear as if 

there was a fire on t.hat floor. ormally if you're 

Page 43 

close to the fire, you c.an feel the radiated heat. 

Obviously we'd just climbed 14 floors carrying lots 

of equipment so we were quite hot ourselves, but it 

didn't appear that there was a fire there, just that it 

was ery smoke-logged. 

Q. ·what was the colour of the smoke, can you remember? 

A. Black. Very dark grey and black. 

Mr omeliu , I'd now like to turn to when you get 

to floor 14 itself. 

Was the lobby area clearer than the tainvell? 

A. It was yeah. The lobby area to the flats was a lot 

clearer than the stairs, yes. 

the way. Like, I think that flat on the 20th floor 

fla shed over minute after we were in it, so the 

temperature wa rising all the time. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
Merrion, 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, 
pl9 
Levell4lobby 
relatively clear 
Approx. 02:00 

Yahya 
(IWS00000498) 
Level 18 lobby 
Approx. 02:00 

Foster, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
pl04 
Levell8 
Approx. 02:00 

Law son, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
p 13 9 (paired 
with Foster) 
181h floor lobby 
smoke logged 
Approx. 02:00 

Murphy 
(METOOO 1 0820) 
Levell4lobby 
Approx. 02:05 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

Q. What were the ·moke condition ' in the lobby on floor 14, 

can you remember? 

A. The lift lobby, there was a small amount of smoke. 

Q. Whilst you were on floor 14 did the moke condition 

deteriorate, remain table or improve? 

A. In the lift lobby I felt they tayed the ame. 

21 . At about 2 a.m. two fire fighters, one male and one female, knocked on our door. 

They were wearing breathing apparatus sets. They came inside as soon as I opened 

the door and told me to hurry up and shut the door quickly, as by this time there was 

dark, thick smoke in the 18th floor lobby. They took off their helmets and breathing 

Q. Okay. 

You got up to the 18th floor. What were the 

condition like on the 18th-floor lobby can you 

remember? 

A. You couldn't see your band in front of your face, o 

thick, black smoke. In terms of the temperature 

I can't really remember how hot it was . 

... (pl25) 

Q. Flowing from that whilst you were on th 18th-floor 

lobby did the smoke conditions deteriorate Improve or 

remain con tant? 

. Remained constant. 

Q. Now, if we can tum now to the condition you 

encountered when you got onto the lobby of the 18th 

floor. 

an you de cribe how the conditions in the lobby 

compared to tho e you encountered in the staitwell? 

A. Exactly the same. 

Statement identifies that smoke was present with poor visibility on 
Level 14 at this time 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
Law son, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
p151 
Identifying 
hotter and 
smokier 
conditions 
adjacent to Flat 
156-Door 
locked close. 
Approx. 02:10 
Eden 
(MET000080 19) 
Level 20 lobby 
Approx. 02:10 

Fernandes, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
p176 
Level 20 lobby 
Approx. 02:10 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

A. Ye , flat 2 and 3 were much cooler and in clean air 

compared to the other side of the building yes. 

Q. Did you open the d or into flat 6. 

A. No. 

There was no noise - it was completely silent and vety eerie. It felt like we were alone and it was 

abnormal to not hear any noise, especially from the radios. I didn' t realise that the radios weren' t working 

at this time even though I would normally expect there to be a fair amount of radio traffic. The smoke was 

blacker, thicker and denser and I literally couldn' t see an inch in front of my face. Black smoke tends to 

mean that materials such as plastic and textiles are burning. We stopped and we were deciding what to do 

"(Resident of Floor 20) said that it was horrible and he couldn 't breathe." 

Q. Could you de cri be for u the conditions that you met a 

you went into the lobby on the 20th floor? 

A. The lobby and the higher part of the building were of 

the same conditions: it was thick, black smoke, which 

lighting wouldn't penetrate or illuminate. Just 

a clearer black you could see with the lights or with 

someone's torch. We went through the door, into the 

lobby, stuck to the left-hand wall. You navigated by 

touch, and the only way to recognise flat numbers or 

door numbers was to be on your knees with your face as 

clo e to the door as it could be. The numbers, from my 

recoUection, were to the right-hand side of the letter 

boxes, approximately waist height or head height once 

you're on your knees. And when I say your face right up 

there, there's obviously a small distance for your BA 

mask and the visor on your helmet, and they would 

literally be - they were in contact with the door in 

order to ee the flat numbers. 

Q. Would you agree with Firefighter Williams's description 

that conditions on the 20th floor were floor to ceiling 

mokc? Tt sounds as if you would. 

A. Yes. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
O'Hanlon, 
Transcript 3 July 
2018,p128 
3'd floor lobby 
Approx. 02:13 

Roberts, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p126 
Level 21 lobby 
Approx. 02:15 

Roberts, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p127 
Level 22 lobby 
Approx. 02:15 

Gillman, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p72 
Level 20 lobby 
Approx. 02:15 

O'Donoghue 
(MET00008059 
1) 
Lobbies between 
6 and 10 
Approx. 02:25 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

MR MILLETT: When you got to the third floor, do you 

remember what the conditions were like there? 

A. 1 don't remember being- it wasn't smoky, I don't 

think, no. 

A. I basically opened the door into the lobby area. 

Q. If I could stop you there, what were the conditions on 

the 21 t lobby? 

A. Visibility was zero, I had my torch on. There was no 

light. I would literally have to put my hand in front 

of my face to see anything in there. 

Q. Did you go in --

A. I took a couple of steps in, then as I turned around, 

I could see the door closing, so I was quite concerned 

ifl did get disorientated and the door did close and 

Firefighter Gillam wasn't to come up, I could 

potentially have got lost on that 21st floor. 

Q. As you opened the door into the 22nd-floor lobby, what 

did you encounter? 

A. Again, exactly the same as the 21st floor: pitch black, 

eerily quiet. You couldn't see literally your hand in 

Page 127 

front of your face. 

Q. What were the condition like, Gr t of all , on the 

tairwcll at floor 20? 

A. Smoky. And when Andy opened that door it let a lot of 

darker smoke into that stairwell. 

"The conditions in the stairwell were very hot and it got hotter as we 
ascended. On every floor we would open the door into the lobby area 
to see if there were any casualties, and the lobby areas were hotter 
than the stairs. Some of the doors had been blocked open by discarded 
equipment which was letting smoke in." 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
O'Donoghue, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p26 
Checking 3 
unknown 
lobbies between 
Level6 and 
Level11 
Approx. 02 :25 

Smith 
(IWS00000771) 
Level 12 lobby 
smoke logged 
Approx. 02 :25 

Neda 
(IWS00000886) 
Level 23 Lobby 
Approx. 02:30 

Gomes 
(IWS00000622) 
Level21 lobby 
Approx. 02:32 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

Q. When you were going up each tai1well did you open the 

door between the tairwell and each lobby on each floor? 

A. I don't think it was on each floor. I think we did it 

three times just in case because the smoke was so thick, 

maybe casualties, residents, had tried to come out, and 

if they'd fallen because of breathing in it, if they 

were just there, we could effect a rescue, even though 

we knew our planned route wa to go to the 12th. 

Q. When you opened the door and looked into each lobby, can 

you talk us through what you did on each and every 

occa ion? 

A. Just opened the door, looked in, felt the blast of hot 

air houted with no response. That's as far as we took 

it. 

'6 ... \galll I \\!.:Ill to look ou t of our tl·ont door and the.: mokc \\a:-, n:a l l~ \ery 

\ery thick and dctrl-.. you ~.:ouldn"t see through it. I tuld th1.: ·rncrgulC) 

~r~r.t t or anJ again he told me that the tire \\US on the fourth floor and that 

we \\~.:re: sak. I le: told us to stay in the tlat. 

52. I grabbed my mwn and walked out of our flat and on to the landing outside. It was pitch 

black and thick with smoke. I could not see a thing. The heat was greater in the lobby than 

in the flat. I did not know what time it was but I think it must have been ar01md 2.30 an1 as I 

have seen the cctv still image taken in the lobby of me leaving the Tower at 02 .42.16 hrs. I 

had to feel my way out on the landing to the stairwell door. I could not breathe as the air was 

thick and toxic. I took a deep breath and was holding my breath for as long as I could and I 

started walking down the stairs. 

9 1. At 2:32a.m. I opened the door onto the landing hallway and took a video on my mobile 

telephone of what. I encountered. I saw and videoed a wall of dense. pitch black smoke. It 

surged into the fla t through the open door when I opened the door to inspect the state of 

the landing. There were no fire alarms going off on the landing and no vents sounding. I 

could not hear anyone coming up from lower in the building. There was no shouting. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
Herrera, 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, 
p106 
Level14 
Approx. 02:36 

Orchard, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
p53 
Level14lobby 
Approx. 02:36 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

14th floor it elf. 

Was there a difference between the smoke conditions 

you encountered on the 14th floor itself compared to the 

stairwell? 

A. o it was the same from the bridgehead to the 

14th noor complete black, thick smoke . 
. . . (p108) 

. There was no need to get on the floor because the smoke 

was ceiling to noor. It was pointles to do that. 

Q. Looking now at conditions on the 14th floor, what was 

the difference between the conditions you encountered on 

the tairwcll and in the lobby on the 14th floor? 

A. I think they were pretty imilar, actually. 

Q. When you were in the 14th floor lobby, what wa your 

vi ibility like? How far forward could you ee into the 

lobby in tem1s of metre ? 

A. Couldn't really see an distance. We were having to 

crouch down and get right to the door to see the numbers 

on the door, so--

Q. How clo e up to the doors did you have to go in order-­

A. Incbe . 
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Transcript 
reference 
Juggins, 
Transcript 11 
September 2018, 
p69 
Level14lobby 
Approx. 02:36 

Smith 
(IWS00000771) 
Level 12 lobby 
smoke logged 
Approx. 02:40 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

. I believe at the time, it was very thinly smoke-logged, 

but it wasn't as pitch black as the stairs. The stairs 

was completely invi iblc, you couldn't cc a thing, but 

when we got on to the floor, I think the fire door that 

protected the stain ell to the lobby had protected it 

enough that it wasn't too completely smoke-logged. 

I could see my hand in front of my face. It wasn't 

completely pitch black. 

Q. In the lobby it elf you could ee y ur hand in front of 

your face? 

Yes. 

Q. How much further could you ee? 

A. I could ee my crew manager in front of me, the team 

leader, and then within a couple of metres I'd ay 

I would be able to see. I couldn't ee across the floor 

of the lobby to the other flats. I could see - where 

we was aoing to 111 could see the door. 

Q. How far ahead of you was rew Manager McAionen? 

. Within touching distance. So a metre or so . 
. . . (p70) 

Q. Wh n you were earching the flat i that the point at 

which the lobby area begin to get increa ingly 

mok -logged? 

A. Yes so a I completed the search of the fla~ I noticed 

as I was coming back out toward the lobby that the 

lobby had now become a lot darker a lot more -- like 

the visibility had gone traight down almost to zero so 

noticed there was smoke-logging coming through the 

floors. 

65 I went to the front door and or enl'd it Thick blad, ~mo~c came in to the 

llat ·1 hen l saw what l thought \\CH~ two firemen through the smoke in front 

nf mt.'. I saw a red light. I bclie'c that th1::. \\a~ by th~· lin: Joor to the sta1rs. 

I could hear laboured breathing, th1s mu~t have been the lireman 01 li1 cnH.:n 

breathing th rough a mask . l said to Kasi,1 '·The) ·re here ... 
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Transcript 
reference 
Li 
(IWSOOOOO 515) 
Level22 
Approx. 02:40 

McAlonen, 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, 
p168 
Level14lobby 
Approx. 02:40 

Upton 
(MET00007524) 
Level19 lobby 
Approx. 02:55 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

67 When they tned to leave the flat, they opened the front door and a lot of smoke came in at that 

t1me Before they opened up the door it was still clear a1r 1n the flat, you didn't feel much about 

the smoke at all, you didn't need towels or anyth1ng You could not tell there was a fire when 

inside flat 193 at that pomt 

A. The conditions were very poor. The smoke level was 

right down to the floor. The smoke wa very thick, very 

black in colour. Made visibility nigh on zero. It was 

difficuJt to see your band iD front of your face. 

The actual smoke it elf although it' not unusual, 

it seemed particularly sticky. I kept haviDg to try and 

clear my face mask, basically, to be able to sec my 

gauge checks and stuff like that. 

Q. Did you encounter another crew on the 14th floor? 

A. When' e first made entrance to the 14th floor I believe 

I heard another crew and saw a torchlight on the actual 

floor, which is normally - they're quite distinctive, 

light from the torch within the smoke. I tried to make 

contact with that crew but I bad no joy, and I thought 

rather than wa te time trying to do that, we carried on 

with our brief, basically. 

Q. How far away were you from the other crew? Could you 

estimate the di tance? 

A. It was difficult to ay. I couldn't ee acros the 

lobby because the smoke was so thick, so I had -

knowing how -the distance we're talking about. 

"same as the stair. I couldn't see any actual flames but there was 
thick, heavy, dense smoke and it was really hot" 
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Transcript 
reference 
Ho are 
(MET00008027) 
Level 12 lobby 
Approx. 03:00 

Ho are, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
p197 
Level 12 lobby 
Approx. 03:00 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

"At head height, it was pitch black no visibility on the (121h floor) 
lobby, completely pitch black and the temperature within the lobby was 
very hot but there was no flame, just smoke and heat. I did not see any 
flame inside the building at all. As I opened the door "the heat hit me, 
it was so hot, and there was no visibility until we got on our hands and 
knees where at least we could see in front of us. I could make out 
where the lift was and the door to the lift was closed. There was an 
enforcer just by the entrance into the lobby door which I picked up as I 
entered the lobby area and we went down on our hands and knees. 

On the 1Oth floor, the door to the lobby which I opened was a fire 
door, self- closing and was closed on arrival. 

I pulled the door towards me to open it and the heat was incredible. It 
was nothing like the 12th floor because it was much worse. 

When the heat hit us and it felt just like opening an oven door. 

whilst I kept the door opened wedge open, Matt came round me to 
crawl forward into the landing. 

Although it was smoky in the staircase it was not as smoky as it was in 
the lobby. " 

Q. ow you got to the 12th floor . Can you giv us 

an idea, first of all, how the condition on the 

stairwell compared to the conditions you experienced on 

the lobby of floor 12? 

A. l,obby was smoke-filled. It just got continually -­

gradually wor e as we got -- the higher we went. 
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Transcript 
reference 
Ho are, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
p198 
Level 10 lobby 
Approx. 03:00 

Yahya 
(IWS00000498) 
Level18 
Approx. 03: 10 

Moo re 
(METOOO 10081) 
Level 11 lobby 
Approx. 03 :10 

Li 
(IWS00000515) 
Level22 
Approx. 03: 15 
Mac it 
(IWS00000904) 
Level16 
Approx. 03:40 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

Q. Hm; ' ould you de cri be the condition between the 

tain ell and the lobby of floor 10? 

A. The stairwell was thick with moke, but the actual lobby 

itself once we opened the door was boiling hot. 

Q. r think in your tatement at page 15 y u de cribe it a 

being like an oven; i that a fair de cription? 

A. es. 

Q. Was the heat such that you were effecti ely forced to 

the ground? 

A. traight to the floor, yeah. 

Q. How high off the floor wa the moke can you remember? 

Wa it fl r to eiling or wa lh re some--

A. o there was a gap. \Vhen you was down low, you could 

probably see- it might ha,•e been 2 foot or something 

from the floor. 

telephoned 999 continuously, but they kept tell ing me to stay put. At about 3 a. m. we 

all left Flat 153 together. Again , as soon as we left the flat it was pitch black on the 

landing area; it was so full of smoke you just couldn't see anything . I remember 

holding onto my kids but I don't remember seeing or hearing the neighbours at all 

after we all left the flat.lland - walked, and I carried_ I could hear 

a very faint fire alarm as we walked. The door to the stairwell was closed when we 

got to it. 

In the statement by Moore (METOOO 10081 ), conditions on Levels 11 
were reported to be untenable due to smoke and heat such that the team 
had to retreat immediately from the lobby. A second approach was 
reported to have been made shortly afterwards that also resulted in an 
immediate retreat from the lobby due to heat. 

90 When we got out of the flat, the smoke was as bad as before but there are bnght white lights 1n 

the hallway so 1t was brighter lt was bnghter but the smoke was so thick you couldn't even see 

your hand 1f you held 1t out 1n front of your face 

7(,_ I he corridor wns full of th1ck hot smoke and I couldn ' t see in f1~11lt of me. l t '"" pi1ch 

blad.. ~ner l~d the \\<I)' tu the doors of the stain, ell. w~ \\alkeJ slowly across to 

them h ld ing. out our hands. We got to the doors and 'cnc1 pushed th' do01 open. 
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Transcript 
reference 
Wood, 
Transcript 12 
September 2018, 
p8 
Level4 
Approx. 03:4 7 

Gomes 
(IWS00000622) 
Level 21 lobby 
Approx. 03:50 

Wood, 
Transcript 12 
September 2018, 
pll 
51h floor lobby 
Approx. 03:50 

Gallagher, 
Transcript 10 
September 2018, 
p29 
Level 12 lobby 
Approx. 04:04 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Lobby conditions 

Q. Can you describe for u the conditions you encountered 

a you left the bridgehead and tarted to make your way 

up to the 4th floor? 

A. Yeah, it was smoky. 

Q. Can you de cribe for us the den ity? How thick wa th 

smoke? 

A. It got thicker as we went through onto the floor. 

Q. What colour was it? 

A. Like black. 

11 8. I was a few seconds behind the others, as a result of grabbing for my keys. When I came 

out on to our landing, it was pitch black. I could not see a thing. The make was awful. I 

was struggling to breathe. I kept gagging and felt. like I needed to throw up every time I 

tried to breathe ; it was suffocating. The smell of the smoke was unnatural and toxic, it 

smelt of burning chemicals. It was very hot, but I had a cold wet towel over my head and 

wrapped around my body and a tea towel covering my mouth. The tea towel helped 

initially but the soot , smog and tar was getting through the tea towe !making it difficult to 

breathe through it. 

Q. So you went up to the 5th floor. an you de cribe for 

us what you encountered on the 5th floor? 

A. Yeah, it was really hot and smoky, and we went in 

a room, in a flat, the front door was burnt off, and 

just- it was all full of fire. Just checking if there 

was anyone in there. But it was so hot, like, I knew 

there would be no one in there. I checked it anyway 

just in case and there was no one in there. 

"We made it to T think the 12th t1oor and there wa 

no one else on that floor. In the lobby it wa warm, 

there was a moke layer which was a little bit low and 

pitch black. There wa clearly no fire in the hallway. 

N4 Position of bridgehead 

N4.1.1 

N4.1.2 

The table below records specific extracts from resident witness statements and 
the examination transcripts from fire fighters relating to the position of the 
bridgehead. Where possible, each item of evidence has been assigned an 
Approximate time, a location and placed in chronological order. 

The position of the Bridgehead was presented in Section 14 of my preliminary 
Phase 1 report. 
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N4.1.3 As a result of new evidence, I have changed one time from the time given in 
my preliminary Phase 1 report. This evidence indicates that the move of the 
Bridgehead from Ground to Level3 is more likely to have occurred between 
0830 and 0930 and not 0730, as I originally recorded. 

Table N.3: Position ofthe bridgehead 

Transcript 
reference 
Gillman, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p59 
Approx. 01:56 

Cook, Transcript 
24 July 2018, 
pl97 
Bridgehead 
moved to 3'd 
floor 
Approx. 02:17 

Cook, Transcript 
24 July 2018, 
p202 
Bridgehead 
moved to 
Ground floor 
Approx. 03:08 

Gillman, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p88 
Approx. 06:00 

Content- Bridgehead location 

ow, at that tage where wa the btidgehead? 

A. On the mezzanine. On the mezzanine floor. You go into 

the tower, turn to your right, there's like a glass 

staircase and a mezzanine. On the mezzanine walkway 

just at the entrance to that. 

Q. Right. 

Doe that mean you weren't involved with the actual 

move from the second to the third floor? 

A. ot that J can recall. I just recall vividly that we 

were on the third when I came back. 

Q. ow, can you help us with the timing of the move from 

the econd to the third floor? How oon after your 

taking these photographs at 02.15, 02.17, did you come 

Page 197 

back into the building and find that it had been moved 

to the third floor? 

A. It would',•e been straight away, so-- yeah. 

Q. Right, okay, that's helpful. 

"A the Bridgehead wa being evacuated I took 

pictures of the FSG calls that had been written on the 

wall. The time of this e acuation was 03:08 

approximately." 

ow, you took this picture did you? 

A. Ye. 

Q. 1 think you ay you did . The time of it as you say 1 

03.08. We have the Microsoft screenshot for that. 

A. Yes. 

an you remember, at the time you were deployed on 

that patticular tas k, where was the location of the 

bridgehead? 

A. The bridgehead was on the ground floor at the bottom of 

the glas stairca e. 
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Transcript 
reference 
Goulboume, 
Transcript 12 
September 2018, 
p199 
Approx. 08:00 

Cook, Transcript 
24 July 2018, 
p234 
Bridgehead 
moved to Level 
3 
Approx. 08:30 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Content- Bridgehead location 

Q. Where were you at about 08.00 am? 

A. Still in the lobby. 

Q. At the bridgeh ad? 

A. Ye. 

Q. Then finally, just a timing point I think. 

If you go to page 18 of your statement, you say-­

this is after fixing some hoses: 

"Once it was fixed again, we were in a position to 

move the Bridgehead up again to the 3 floor- where is 

was ba ed initially." 

A. Yes. 

Q. "The water was restored and there was a new Bridgehead 

command team of Group Managers - John Graham Julian 

Spooner and Dan Alie. By this point the time was 

roughly between 8.30am-9am." 

Do you remember who manned the bridgehead at that 

point? 

A. I couldn't remember who was crewing the bridgehead, no 

Q. Do you remember who made the decision to go up to the 

bridgehead at that point? 

A. No, orry. 
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N5 Evidence of stair doors being open or closed 

NS.l.l Table N.4 below records specific extracts from the fire fighter witness 
statements, fire fighter oral evidence and resident witness statements 
regarding evidence of the stair doors being either open or closed. Each item of 
evidence has been assigned an Approximate time, a specific location and 
placed in chronological order. 

N5.1.2 I have used this evidence in my investigations of the conditions within the 
single escape and fire fighting stair of Grenfell Tower. 

N5.1.3 I will update this evidence when the Residents have completed their oral 
evidence to the Inquiry. 

Table N.4: Evidence of stair doors being open or closed 

Transcript 
reference 
Location/ time 
Kassemdjian 
(IWS00000951) 
From Level 17 
Approx. 01 :26 

Archer 
(MET0000800 1) 
Floor 6 
Approx. 01:30 

Mekonnen 
(IWS00000912) 
Unknown levels 
Approx. 01:32 

Evidence 

33 . When we came out and went to the tairs the fire doors were shut. But each of the fire 

doors were shut except the 4th floor. 

Tom and myself were left in the lobby on the 61h floor, we were the only Fire-fighters there at that point. 

The previous Fire-fighters handed Tom and me their hose, it was a 45 jet and already plugged in from the 

fifth floor. I didn't plug in any hoses at all on the shift. I tried to force the door with a halogen tool, the 

door opened but bounced straight back and closed again, I forced it again, and again it was forced back to 

closed position. Myself and Tom then forced it open and wedged our bodies into the~ so it 

wouldn' t close back again. The windows must have been~ to have made this happen. As soon as we 

wedged the door open thick black smoke came out, and filled the lobby area, the visibility was bad, I 

couldn' t see the stairwell door. 

The hose on the 61h floor came from the outlet on the fifth floor, not the sixth. This was a problem because 

the stairwell filled with smoke from the sixth floor because the hose prevented the door to the stairwell 

closing. \\'hen I was in the lobby I could see lighting on the stairwell and the lights on the lift buttons. We 

20. As I was coming down the stairs, on the lower floors but I do not recall precisely which 

floors. I could see that the stairwell doors leading onto the landings, which lead to the flats 

on each floor, were wedged open by the fire hoses passing through them which were 

coming from the stairwell . I saw that the doors being pattially open, due to fire hoses 

coming from the stairs into the landings on each level, allowed the smoke to enter the 

staitwell and it was spreading up the stairs higher into the Tower. 
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Transcript 
reference 
Location/ time 
Hippel, 
Transcript 19 
July 2018, p71 
Level 16 stair 
door being held 
open by a 
resident 
requriing 
assistance 

Broderick 
(MET00012658) 
Floor 5 
Approx. 01:45 

Sephton 
(METOOO 10895) 
Floors 4 and 5 
Approx. 01:45 

Dorgu, 
Transcript 9 July 
2018,p170 
Level 20 stair 
door was closed 
while Dorgu's 
team in the 
lobby 
Approx. 01:50 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Evidence 

. Pretty much. When I got up to the 16th floor, I may 

well have been the first up there, because I don't 

remember Jamal being up there. o when I got up to 

there there was a teenager, maybe 15, 17, crouched in 

the doorway, propping the door open. There was smoke 

coming out. I don't remember now him telling me that 

there was someone in there, but he may well have told me 

there was omeone in there. 
Page 7 of 14 

TIC, FF ABLE and FF ARCHER made their way back down the staircase. FF BRODRICK led the way 

into the lobby carrying the branch while I was carrying the sledgehammer and CM SEPHTON followed 

up behind as the door way to the landing area closed as best as possible on the hose reducing the amount 

of smoke entering the stairwell. 

Tbis can sometimes occur during an incident when a hose has been stretched out for a long distance. In 

tbis case the hose bad come from within the staircase, across the lobby and into the flat and somewhere 

along the way it bad snagged on something. I made my way back along the hose to the flat entrance and 

We bad just reached the fifth floor landing area so took a few seconds to compose ourselves before 

entering the fifth floor lobby area. FF BRODRICK took the branch again, CM SEPHTON bad the TIC 

and I followed up behind. The door was pulled open, the smoke billowed into the stairwell again, just as 

tbick and black, still floor to ceiling, still zero visibility. We slowly made our way towards the flat we bad 

started on the fourth (4rh) floor. I could see that the crew before us bad taken the hose up. We walked up 

the stairwell and followed the hose from the fourth ( 4rh) floor to the fifth (Srh) floor. The stairwell door 

bad been wedged open by the hose. The hose was attached to the dry riser on the fourth (4rh) floor and it 

was charged with water. The three (3) of us followed the hose into the flat It was flat twenty-six (26) 

Q. During the time that you'd pent on the 20th floor do 

you think the door n·om the lobby to the tairwell had 

remained closed? 

A. Yes, it had, because I had to open it to leave. 

Q. Yet you found the stairwell full of. moke? You said it 

was pitch black. 

A. Ye , it had basically built up again t the door becau e 

the lobby- a we opened the door, the lobby filled 

with moke, and when we closed the door, the tainvell 

filled with smoke. 

Q. Did the smoke in the stairwell come from the 20th floor 

lobby or do you think it wa coming from et ewhere? 

A. Coming from downstairs, I think. 
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Transcript 
reference 
Location/ time 
Mills 
(MET00008058 
4) 
Ascending from 
bridgehead to 
15'h floor 
Approx. 01:52 

Roberts, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p122 
Recording 
conditons up to 
Level 10, shortly 
after 01 :57 
Gillman, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p68 
Recording 
conditions up to 
Level 15 shortly 
after 01 :57 
O'Donoghue, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p22 
Level9 open 
Approx. 02:00 

Gillman, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p71 
Level20 
Approx. 02:05 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Evidence 

of calls also. Some fire doors were closed, it just depended if there was a hose going thtough the door. If I 

opened any doors I made sure they were closed behind me. All the doors I did open did close properly 

with self-closing mechanisms. The spread of smoke may have been due to the hoses going thtough the 

doors keeping the doors open a little. The hose is connected to the dry riser hose on the floor below and 

there should be another crew backing you up, so you have to breach the fire door. One flat door was 

actually open when I reached it but I don' t know which floor or flat it was. The dry riser was definitely 

charged as the hose was solid. We reached the 15th floor, the dry riser was charged with water but we 

Q. As you'd gone up the staitwell, had you noticed whether 

the doors to the lobbies were open or closed? 

A. I didn't notice any doors open on any of the floors all 

the way up. 

Q. Can you remember whether any of the doors from the 

tairwell to individuallobbie wer op n or not? 

A. I don't recall seeing any open at that time, at that 

height, anyway. 

Q. Can you remember whether the door between the tairwell 

and the third-floor lobby was open or closed at the 

time? 

A. On my journey in ide the tower, I only remember, 

I think -- and I'm not sure what floor it was on, but it 

may be the ninth -- that one of the door wa wedged 

open with a halligan bar. To my knowledge, even though 

sometimes I couldn't see, l assumed the doors were 

closed. 

ow, did you cc Andy Hanis op n th door and go 

into the hallway of fl oor 20? 

e . 

Q. How far into the lobby did he go'. 

He ju t opened the door and took one pace in ide. The 

door wa , till ajar. 

Q. Did h . houl anything and, if so, what did h hout? 

A. eah there wa a few of us hooting. I think he just 

hooted "Fire Brigade" omething along them lines. 

Q. 'vVhat were the condition like fit; t of all, on the 

tairwel l a t floor 20? 

moky. nd when Andy opened that door it let a lot of 

darker moke into that tainvell. 
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Transcript 
reference 
Location/ time 
Des forges 
(MET000080 13) 
A floor between 
10-13 
Approx. 02:10 

Eden 
(MET000080 19) 
Pl2 
On the way to 
Floor 20 
Approx. 02:10 

Yahya 
(IWS00000498) 
Level 18 stair 
door 
Approx. 03: 10 
Wharnsby, 
Transcript 6 
September 2018, 
pl99 
4th to 13th floor 
After 03:18 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Evidence 

conditions were too bad on that fl oor and that it had not been earched. I think it may have been the 

thineenth or founeenth floor, but after peaking 10 another crew since the incident believe it was probably 

between the tenth and founeenlh floors. FF MITCHELL who was at this time in a crouched position 

attempted 10 open the lobby fire door but due to the heat and conditions fell to the floor. I can honestly 

say I' ve never een conditions like this in my time in the brigade. The fire door on this lobby had worked 

very well as the cond ition in the stairwell a lthough very hot and smoky was much beuer than in the lobby 

after we opened that door where the moke was much thicker and the pre ure and heat wa something I 

had never experienced in my entire career. 

We decided we needed 10 search the floor so whilst FF MITCHELL held the fire door open I crawled on 

my belly into the lobby area and immediately found what I thought was a small human at first but then 

reali ed it was in fact a dog or a cat. I pas ed it to FF MJTCHELL who in turn pa ed it to another crew 

going down the stairwell. The moke in this area was thick black rolling smoke and visibil ity was near to 

nothing sti ll . 

I followed the left-hand wall conduct ing a earch leaving FF MIT ffELL at the door. It hough this is not 

policy as fire fighter are meant 10 stay together I decided I did not want the door to clo e behind me and 

be unable 10 gel out so thought thi s was a safer option in the circumstances. I moved at speed as the heat 

was very inten e and whil t doing so I fou nd a casually who was unconscious although I do not know a 

knowing where we l.\'l:!C and he said that he couldn 't see anything . We continued up and I heard the 

EDBA team in front say, "We're going to 12- this is us". We waited for about 30 seconds for them clear 

out of the way and continued up with the other EDBA team who were going to the J41h floor. The smoke 

had thinned out a little bit by now and coming up, I had seen that doors were being held open by bits of 

hose or were being wedged opened. I kept kicking things under foot, maybe bits of clothing and it started 

to feel like more of a fire situation as people were doing stuff and equipment could be seen. We followed 

after we all left the flat. . and , and I carried I could hear 

a very faint fire alarm as we walked. The door to the stairwell was closed when we 

got to it. 

he conditions were changeable, so when we had crews 

come up, the st.airwciJ would be clear to a point and 

then we'd have crews come up and make entry off of the 

stainvell onto the floors. Every time they done that, 

it filled the stairwell up with smoke completely to the 

point where we would push BA crews into the door and a k 

them to shut the door behind them, and let it clear. 

here was a few time -

Q. When the doors were closed, were they effective? 

A. When the doors were closed, they were effective. I at 

without BA on for a period of time, and the door were 

radiating heat but were keeping the smoke back. 
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REPORT OF 

SPECIALIST FIELD 

ON BEHALF OF: 

Transcript 
reference 
Location/ time 
Gomes 
(IWSOOOOO 515) 
Level 21 stair 
door 
Approx. 03:50 

Gillman, 
Transcript 23 
July 2018, p90 
Levels 10, 11 
and 12 closed 
Approx. 06:00 

DR BARBARA LANE 

FIRE SAFETY ENGINEERING 

GRENFELL TOWER INQUIRY 

Evidence 

11 9. As I got to the stairwell door, the swing shut door was open and I walked through the 

door. I had presumed that the door was closed to begin with, but I did not know what the 

situation was as I was the last one in my group to walk through the door. 

Q. As you went up can you remember whether the doors from 

the tairwells to the lobbies were open or closed? 

A. On the floors that I was on, 10, 11 and 12 they were 

closed. 
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